
 

 

 
MEETING: OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE (CHILDREN'S 

SERVICES AND SAFEGUARDING) 
  

DATE: 27th September 2022 
  
TIME: 6.30 pm 

  
VENUE: Town Hall, Southport 
  

 
 Member Substitute 

 
 Cllr. June Burns (Chair) 

Cllr. Paula Spencer (Vice-Chair) 
Cllr. Danny Burns 
Cllr. Natasha Carlin 

Cllr. Leo Evans 
Cllr. Judy Hardman 

Cllr. Christine Maher 
Cllr. Paula Murphy 
Cllr. Mike Prendergast 

Cllr. Andrew Wilson 
Maurice Byrne, Healthwatch 
Karen Christie, Healthwatch 

Mrs Sandra Cain, Independent 
Advisory Member 

Stuart Harrison, Diocese 
Father Des Seddon, Archdiocese 
Machalla McDermott, PGR 

PGR - 1 Vacancy 

Cllr. Robert Brennan 

Cllr. Christine Howard 
Cllr. Greg Myers 
Cllr. John Kelly 

Cllr. Iain Brodie - Browne 
Vacancy 

Cllr. Jennifer Corcoran 
Cllr. Steve McGinnity 
Cllr. Tony Brough 

Vacancy 
 
 

 
 

 

 

 
 COMMITTEE OFFICER: Debbie Campbell 

Senior Democratic Services Officer 

 Telephone: 0151 934 2254 
 E-mail: debbie.campbell@sefton.gov.uk 

 
 
 

If you have any special needs that may require arrangements to 

facilitate your attendance at this meeting, please contact the 
Committee Officer named above, who will endeavour to assist. 

 

We endeavour to provide a reasonable number of full agendas, including reports at 

the meeting.  If you wish to ensure that you have a copy to refer to at the meeting, 
please can you print off your own copy of the agenda pack prior to the meeting. 

 

Public Document Pack



 

A G E N D A 
 

1.   Apologies for Absence 

 
 

2.   Declarations of Interest  

 Members are requested at a meeting where a disclosable 
pecuniary interest or personal interest arises, which is not 
already included in their Register of Members' Interests, to 

declare any interests that relate to an item on the agenda. 
 

Where a Member discloses a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest, 
he/she must withdraw from the meeting room, including from 
the public gallery, during the whole consideration of any item 

of business in which he/she has an interest, except where 
he/she is permitted to remain as a result of a grant of a 

dispensation. 
 
Where a Member discloses a personal interest he/she must 

seek advice from the Monitoring Officer or staff member 
representing the Monitoring Officer to determine whether the 

Member should withdraw from the meeting room, including 
from the public gallery, during the whole consideration of any 
item of business in which he/she has an interest or whether 

the Member can remain in the meeting or remain in the 
meeting and vote on the relevant decision. 
 

 

3.   Minutes of the Previous Meeting (Pages 5 - 12) 

 Minutes of the meeting held on 5 July 2022. 
 

 

4.   Domestic Abuse Update (Pages 13 - 
24) 

 Report of the Assistant Director of People (Communities) 
 

 

5.   Children's Services Improvement Programme (Pages 25 - 
36) 

 Report of the Executive Director of Children’s Social Care 

and Education 
 

 

6.   Early Help Services  

 Report of the Executive Director of Children’s Social Care 

and Education – To Follow 
 

 

7.   Education Excellence Strategy for Sefton 2022-2027 (Pages 37 - 

66) 

 Report of the Assistant Director Children’s Services 
(Education) 

 
At its meeting held on 15 March 2022, the Committee asked 
that a request be made for the Key Decision on the 

 



Education Excellence Strategy for Sefton 2021-2025 to be 
deferred to the Cabinet meeting scheduled for 28 July 2022, 
to enable this Committee to pre-scrutinise the matter at its 

meeting scheduled for 5 July 2022, and for the item to be 
included in the work programme for 2022/23. The item has 

now been deferred to be considered by the Cabinet at its 
meeting to be held on 6 October 2022. 
 

8.   Ofsted Inspection Reports (Pages 67 - 
72) 

 Report of the Executive Director of Children’s Social Care 
and Education 

 

 

9.   Cabinet Member Reports (Pages 73 - 
84) 

 Report of the Chief Legal and Democratic Officer 

 

 

10.   Work Programme Key Decision Forward Plan (Pages 85 - 
108) 

 Report of the Chief Legal and Democratic Officer 

 

 

 



This page is intentionally left blank



THIS SET OF MINUTES IS NOT SUBJECT TO “CALL IN”. 

 

1 

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE  
(CHILDREN'S SERVICES AND SAFEGUARDING) 

 

MEETING HELD AT THE TOWN HALL BOOTLE 

ON TUESDAY 5TH JULY, 2022 
 

PRESENT: Councillor June Burns (in the Chair) 

Councillor Spencer (Vice-Chair) 
Councillors Danny Burns, Carlin, Evans, Hardman, 

Killen, Murphy, Prendergast and Wilson 
 

ALSO PRESENT: Mr. M. Byrne, Healthwatch Representative 

Ms. M. McDermott, Parent Governor Representative 
Ms. C. McDonough, Parent Governor 

Representative 
Mrs. S. Cain, Independent Advisory Member 
Councillor Doyle – Cabinet Member – Children’s 

Social Care 
Councillor Roscoe, Cabinet Member – Education 

Councillor Brough 
 

 
1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  

 

An apology for absence was received from Ms. K. Christie, Healthwatch 
Representative. 
 
2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

 

No declarations of any disclosable pecuniary interests or personal 
interests were received. 
 
3. MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING  

 

RESOLVED: 
 
That the Minutes of the meeting held on 15 March 2022 be confirmed as a 

correct record. 
 
4. MATTERS ARISING FROM THE MINUTES  

 
RESOLVED: 

 
That it be noted that the Minutes of the Improvement Board, in relation to 

the Children’s Services Improvement Journey, have been requested by 
the Committee. 
 
5. OFSTED REPORT AND IMPROVEMENT PLAN  

 

In response to a request by the Chair of the Committee, the Executive 
Director of Children’s Social Care and Education provided a verbal update 

Page 5

Agenda Item 3



OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE (CHILDREN'S SERVICES 
AND SAFEGUARDING) - TUESDAY 5TH JULY, 2022 
 

2 

on the above matter, indicating that the Improvement Plan was currently in 
course of preparation, would be submitted to Ofsted in mid-August 2022 

and would be submitted to the next meeting of the Committee. 
 
Members of the Committee asked questions/raised issues on the 

following: 
 

 The lack of opportunity for Committee Members to consider the 
Improvement Plan before its submission to Ofsted. 

 Representatives on the Improvement Board. 

 The lack of opportunity for Committee Members to debate the 
Ofsted report. 

 The Independent Advisor who chaired the Improvement Board. 
 

RESOLVED: That 
 
(1) the Improvement Plan be submitted to a Special meeting of the 

Committee prior to its submission to Ofsted; and 
 

(2) the Improvement Advisor who chairs the Improvement Board be 
invited to attend a meeting of the Committee. 

 
6. OFSTED INSPECTION REPORTS  

 

The Committee considered the report of the Executive Director of 
Children’s Social Care and Education updating on recent Ofsted 
Inspection Reports and the work of the School Improvement Team. 

 
The following schools had been inspected and reports received during the 

Spring term of 2022: 

 

 Litherland High School; 

 Waterloo Primary School; 

 Bedford Primary School; 

 Maghull High School; 

 Woodlands Primary School; 

 Range High School; and 

 Our Lady of Walsingham RC Primary School. 

 

A Summary of Ofsted Outcomes and Support during Spring 2022 was 
attached to the report. 
 

Members of the Committee asked questions/raised issues on the 
following: 

 

 The role of the local authority in school improvement. 

 Feeder schools. 

 Views on academisation and the Archdiocese. A report could be 

provided on an event with Headteachers of Catholic High Schools. 

Page 6

Agenda Item 3



OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE (CHILDREN'S SERVICES 
AND SAFEGUARDING) - TUESDAY 5TH JULY, 2022 
 

3 

 The representatives of the Diocese and Archdiocese on the 
Committee. 

 
RESOLVED: That 
 

(1) the report be noted; 
 

(2) the Head of Education be requested to submit a report of the event 
with Headteachers of Catholic High Schools to be held on 6 July 
2022, particularly regarding views on academisation and the 

Archdiocese; and 
 

(3) a letter be forwarded to the representatives of the Diocese and 
Archdiocese on the Committee, requesting them to attend 
meetings. 

 
7. IMPACT OF COVID 19 ON THE PRIMARY CURRICULUM  

 WORKING GROUP - FINAL REPORT  

 
The Committee considered the report of the Chief Legal and Democratic 

Officer presenting formally the final report of the Impact of Covid 19 on the 
Primary Curriculum Working Group. 

 
The Final Report of the Impact of Covid 19 on the Primary Curriculum 
Working Group was attached to the report: 

 
Councillor Spencer, Lead Member, introduced the Final Report. 

 
Members of the Committee asked questions/raised issues on the 
following: 

 

 Many teachers and support staff felt unappreciated. 

 Schools should be provided with an electronic version of the letter, 
in order that it could be forwarded to each member of staff. 

 Recruitment issues. 
 
RESOLVED: 

 
That the Cabinet and the Council be recommended to approve the 

following recommendations: 
 
(1) that, once data is available, the Head of Education Excellence be 

requested to submit a monitoring report to the Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee (Children’s Services and Safeguarding), on 

primary school performance, to include school attendance and any 
available information on SATs results, and other performance 
indicators, in order to draw comparisons with 2019 performance and 

also with regional and national performance; 
 

(2) that the Council be requested to agree in writing to all Headteachers 
of schools throughout the Borough, to thank teaching staff for their 

Page 7

Agenda Item 3



OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE (CHILDREN'S SERVICES 
AND SAFEGUARDING) - TUESDAY 5TH JULY, 2022 
 

4 

on-going input throughout the pandemic and to raise the following 
matters: 

 
 (a) to remind schools of the continued support available from the 
  Council; 

 
(b) to remind schools of the various options available for 

securing additional teaching staff, such as: 
 

the graduate teaching apprenticeship scheme 

School Centred Initial Teacher Training (SCITT) 

Teach First 

Degree course in Bachelor of Education (B.Ed.) and 

a Post Graduate Certificate in Education (PGCE) 

 

 (c) to remind schools of the availability of mental health support, 
  including the Young People’s Emotional Wellbeing Toolkit  

  that can be accessed via the following link: 
 
 Mental Health & Emotional Wellbeing (sefton.gov.uk) 

 
 (d) to encourage schools to try to re-engage with families as a  
  source of support in schools where possible and where  
  practical, particularly given covid concerns. 

 

(3) that the Mayor of Sefton be requested to consider hosting an event 
for representatives of all schools throughout the Borough, to thank 
them for their ongoing input throughout the pandemic; 

 
(4) that the Council be requested to agree to writing to the Department 

for Education in the strongest terms, to request additional resources 
for Sefton schools, particularly in view of forthcoming literacy and 
numeracy expectations on primary schools by 2030; and 

 
(5) that the Senior Democratic Services Officer be requested to liaise 

with relevant officers in order to ensure that the Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee (Children’s Services and Safeguarding) 
receives a six-monthly monitoring report, setting out progress made 

against each of the recommendations outlined above. 
 
8. CABINET MEMBER REPORTS  

 
The Committee considered the report of the Chief Legal and Democratic 

Officer submitting the most recent update reports from the Cabinet 
Member – Children’s Social Care, and the Cabinet Member – Education, 

whose portfolios fell within the remit of the Committee. 
 
The Cabinet Member update report – Children’s Social Care, attached to 

the report at Appendix A, outlined information on the following: 
 

Page 8

Agenda Item 3



OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE (CHILDREN'S SERVICES 
AND SAFEGUARDING) - TUESDAY 5TH JULY, 2022 
 

5 

 Children’s Social Care; 

 Youth Justice Service; and 

 Reframe – a New Intervention. 
 

The Cabinet Member update report – Education, attached to the report at 
Appendix B, outlined information on the following: 
 

 Education Excellence; 

 Schools; 

 St Teresa’s RC Infant and Nursery School; 

 Sacred Heart Catholic College; 

 Savio Salesian College; 

 Exams, assessments and tests; 

 Attendance; 

 Inspecting Local Authority Children’s Services (ILACs); 

 Virtual School; 

 Update on Children Missing Education (CME) and Elective Home 
Education (EHE); and 

 Special Educational Needs and Disabilities (SEND). 
 

Councillors Doyle and  Roscoe attended the meeting to present their 
reports and to respond to any questions or issues raised by Members of 

the Committee. 
 
Members of the Committee asked questions/raised issues on the 

following: 
 

 Fees associated with the international recruitment of social workers. 

 Strategies used to support newly qualified social workers. 

 Parity of esteem between Overview and Scrutiny and the Cabinet. 

 Other partner organisations involved in the Improvement Board. 

 Investment in the Social Work Academy. 

 The impact of smaller caseloads for newly qualified social workers 
on existing social workers. 

 The possibility of apprenticeships. 

 Maintaining children with SEND in mainstream schools. 

 The correlation between school attendance and performance. 

 Fines for non-attendance of school in different areas of the 

Borough. 

 Inclusivity in schools. 

 Academisation of high schools and the relationship with the local 
authority education authority. 

 

RESOLVED: That 
 

(1) the update reports from the Cabinet Member – Children’s Social 
Care and the Cabinet Member – Education be noted; 

 

Page 9

Agenda Item 3



OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE (CHILDREN'S SERVICES 
AND SAFEGUARDING) - TUESDAY 5TH JULY, 2022 
 

6 

(2) the Head of Children’s Social Care be requested to submit a report 
on recruitment and support for newly qualified social workers to the 

Committee in 6 months’ time; and 
 
(3) information regarding attendance and sanctions be provided by the 

Head of Education to the Senior Democratic Services Officer for 
circulation to Members of the Committee. 

 
9. WORK PROGRAMME KEY DECISION FORWARD PLAN  

 

The Committee considered the report of the Chief Legal and Democratic 
Officer: 

 

 seeking the views of the Committee on the draft Work Programme 
for the Municipal Year 2022/23; 

 noting the progress of the Impact of Covid 19 on the Primary 
Curriculum Working Group; 

 consideration of deferring the re-establishing the Secondary School 
Performance and Attainment Working Group for a further 12 

months, to the Autumn of 2023; 

 inviting Committee Members to participate in informal briefing 
sessions during 2022/23, rather than establish a traditional working 

group; 

 identifying any items for pre-scrutiny by the Committee from the 

latest Key Decision Forward Plan; and 

 receiving an update on the Liverpool City Region Combined 

Authority Overview and Scrutiny Committee. 
 
The following appendices were attached to this report: 

 

 Appendix A - Work Programme for 2021/22; 

 Appendix B – Terms of Reference for the Committee (extract from 
the Council’s Constitution); and 

 Appendix C – the latest Key Decision Forward Plan items relating to 
the Committee. 

 

A supplementary agenda requested Committee Members to comment on 
the proposed frequency of meetings and the revised draft Work 

Programme for 2022/23, as attached at revised Appendix A. 
 
Since the agenda for the meeting was published, a further Key Decision 

Forward Plan had been produced and the Committee was invited to 
identify any items for pre-scrutiny, as set out at Revised Appendix C. 

 
Members of the Committee asked questions/raised issues on the 
following: 

 

 The possibility of providing a briefing session on the Leeds Family 

Values and the Sunderland model. 

 A partnership event on 21st July 2022. 

Page 10

Agenda Item 3



OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE (CHILDREN'S SERVICES 
AND SAFEGUARDING) - TUESDAY 5TH JULY, 2022 
 

7 

 The proposed frequency of meetings of the Committee. 

 A report on the Children’s Services Improvement Journey. 

 Timings of any briefing sessions held. 

 The frequency of Improvement Board meetings. 

 The replacement for the Chief Officer of the Clinical Commissioning 
Groups. 

 The possibility of a briefing on the MacAlister Review. 

 The impact of Section 106 monies to education services, regarding 
projected school admission numbers. 

 
RESOLVED: That 

 
(1) the revised draft Work Programme for 2022/23, as set out at 

Revised Appendix A to the report, be agreed, along with any 

additional items to be included and agreed; 
 

(2) progress of the Impact of Covid 19 on the Primary Curriculum 
Working Group be noted; 

 

(3) the re-establishment of the Secondary School Performance and 
Attainment Working Group be considered further at the next 

meeting of the Committee; 
 
(4) all Members of the Committee be invited to participate in informal 

briefing sessions, the timings to be considered and the following 
topics be considered for inclusion: 

 

 the Leeds Family Values and the Sunderland model; and 

 the MacAlister Review; 
 
(5) the Key Decision Forward Plan for the period 1 August – 30 

November 2022, be noted; and 
 

(6) the update on the Liverpool City Region Combined Authority 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee be noted. 

 

 
 

Page 11

Agenda Item 3



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

Report to: Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee 
(Adult Social Care 

and Health) 
 

Overview & Scrutiny 
Committee 
(Regeneration & 

Skills) 
 

Overview & Scrutiny 
Committee 
(Children’s Services 

& Safeguarding) 
 

Date of Meeting: Tuesday 6 
September 2022 
 

 
 

Wednesday 28 
September 2022 
 

 
 

Tuesday 27 
September 2022 

Subject: Domestic Abuse Update 
 

Report of: Assistant Director of 
People 

(Communities) 
 

Wards Affected: (All Wards); 

Portfolio: Communities & Housing  
 

Is this a Key 

Decision: 
No Included in 

Forward Plan: 
No 
 

Exempt / 
Confidential 

Report: 

No 
 

 
Summary: 

 
The purpose of the report is to update Overview & Scrutiny Members on the Sefton’s 
strategic approach to tackling domestic abuse, including an overview of the Domestic 

Abuse Act and work of the Sefton Domestic Abuse Partnership Board to date.  
 

Recommendation(s): 

 
(1) Members note the content of the report 

 
 
Reasons for the Recommendation(s): 

 
It is essential that elected members understand the work of the Domestic Abuse Board 

and how we are responded to the requirements of the Domestic Abuse Act locally. This 
will provide assurance as well as provide information to enable sufficient challenge. 

 
Alternative Options Considered and Rejected: (including any Risk Implications) 

 

There are no alternative options as Sefton’s Domestic Abuse response and the work of 
the Domestic Abuse Partnership Board are a statutory requirement. 

 

Page 13

Agenda Item 4



 

 

 
What will it cost and how will it be financed? 

 
(A) Revenue Costs 

 
The Council received £607,271 in New Burdens funding in 2022/23 to provide support to 
victims/survivors living in safe accommodation.   

 
(B) Capital Costs 

 
Implications of the Proposals: 

 
Resource Implications (Financial, IT, Staffing and Assets):  

 

None at this time 

Legal Implications: 

 

The work of the board and commissioning of Domestic Abuse services is a statutory 

responsibility of the Council  

Equality Implications: 

The equality Implications have been identified and mitigated 
 

Climate Emergency Implications: 

 

The recommendations within this report will  

Have a positive impact  No 

Have a neutral impact Yes 

Have a negative impact No 

The Author has undertaken the Climate Emergency training for 

report authors 

Yes 

 

 
Contribution to the Council’s Core Purpose:  

 

Protect the most vulnerable: Domestic Abuse survivors/victims and their children are 
some of the most vulnerable members of our communities. The work of the board will 
strive to ensure they have adequate support. 

 

Facilitate confident and resilient communities: We want to create communities where 
Domestic Abuse is abhorrent and that residents have confidence in Domestic Abuse 

support services. 
 

Commission, broker and provide core services: It is the responsibility of the Domestic 
Abuse Partnership Board to give effect to the Domestic Abuse Strategy by 

commissioning and decommissioning services for victims/survivors and their children. 
 

Place – leadership and influencer: Not applicable 

 

Drivers of change and reform: Not applicable 
 

Facilitate sustainable economic prosperity: Not applicable 

Page 14

Agenda Item 4



 

 

 

Greater income for social investment: Not applicable  
 

Cleaner Greener; Not applicable  

 

 
What consultations have taken place on the proposals and when? 

 
(A) Internal Consultations 

 

The Executive Director of Corporate Resources and Customer Services (FD.6913/22) 
and the Chief Legal and Democratic Officer (LD.5113/22) have been consulted and any 
comments have been incorporated into the report. 

 
(B) External Consultations  

 
In producing the Domestic Abuse Strategic Needs Assessment the commissioners 
interviewed a wide range of victims/survivors to gain an insight into their experience of 

using Domestic Abuse services in Sefton.  
 
Implementation Date for the Decision 

 
Immediately following the Committee meeting. 

 
Contact Officer: Steven Martlew 

Telephone Number:  

Email Address: steven.martlew@sefton.gov.uk 

 
Appendices: 

 
There are no appendices to this report 

 
Background Papers: 

 

There are no background papers available for inspection. 
 
1. Introduction/Background 

 
1.1 Domestic abuse does not fall under any one service, department or agency; it is a 

safeguarding responsibility that cuts across all areas of society and as such it is 
everyone’s’ business to help tackle.  The strategic responsibility for tackling 

domestic abuse in Sefton Council sits with the Communities department and falls 
within the portfolio of the Cabinet Member for Housing and Communities. 
However, it is important the agenda of domestic abuse is also prioritised and 

acknowledged across other portfolio areas in recognition of the breadth of impact 
it has on our residents, communities and workplaces in relation to a wide range of 

our services.  
 
2. Overview of the Act 

 

Page 15

Agenda Item 4



 

 

2.1 The Domestic Abuse Act was signed into law on 29 April 2021. The Act is 
designed to raise awareness of domestic abuse and provide a range of further 

protections for victims of domestic abuse as well as strengthen measures to tackle 
perpetrators.  

 
The act will: 

 

 create a statutory definition of domestic abuse, emphasising that domestic 
abuse is not just physical violence, but can also be emotional, controlling or 

coercive, and economic abuse. 
 

 establish in law the office of Domestic Abuse Commissioner and set out the 

Commissioner’s functions and powers. 
 

 provide for a new Domestic Abuse Protection Notice and Domestic Abuse 
Protection Order (currently known as Domestic Violence Protection Notices 

(DVPNs) and Domestic Violence Protection Orders (DVPOs). 
 

 place a duty on local authorities in England to provide accommodation 

based support to victims of domestic abuse and their children in refuges 
and other safe accommodation. 

 

 prohibit perpetrators of abuse from cross-examining their victims in person 

in the civil and family courts in England and Wales. 
 

 create a statutory presumption that victims of domestic abuse are eligible 

for special measures in the criminal, civil and family courts. 
 

 clarify the circumstances in which a court may make a barring order under 
section 91(14) of the Children Act 1989 to prevent family proceedings that 

can further traumatise victims. 
 

 extend the controlling or coercive behaviour offence to cover post-

separation abuse. 
 

 extend the offence of disclosing private sexual photographs and films with 
intent to cause distress (known as the “revenge porn” offence) to cover 
threats to disclose such material. 

 

 create a new offence of non-fatal strangulation or suffocation of another 

person. 
 

 clarify by restating in statute law the general proposition that a person may 
not consent to the infliction of serious harm and, by extension, is unable to 
consent to their own death. 

 

 extend the extraterritorial jurisdiction of the criminal courts in England and 

Wales, Scotland and Northern Ireland to further violent and sexual 
offences. 

 

 provide for a statutory domestic abuse perpetrator strategy. 

Page 16

Agenda Item 4



 

 

 

 enable domestic abuse offenders to be subject to polygraph testing as a 

condition of their licence following their release from custody. 
 

 place the guidance supporting the Domestic Violence Disclosure Scheme 
(“Clare’s law”) on a statutory footing. 

 

 Provide that all eligible homeless victims of domestic abuse automatically 
have ‘priority need’ for homelessness assistance. 

 

 ensure that where a local authority, for reasons connected with domestic 

abuse, grants a new secure tenancy to a social tenant who had or has a 
secure lifetime or assured tenancy (other than an assured shorthold 
tenancy) this must be a secure lifetime tenancy. 

 

 prohibit GPs and other health professionals in general practice from 

charging a victim of domestic abuse for a letter to support an application for 
legal aid. 

 

 provide for a statutory code of practice relating to the processing of 
domestic abuse data for immigration purposes. 

 
2.2 There will be a statutory guidance framework to support the implementation of the 

act. The consultation on the draft version of this guidance closed on the 14 
September 2021 and is currently being reviewed by the Home Office. 
The guidance will be issued under section 84 of the Domestic Abuse Act 2021 

and has been formulated to set standards and promote best practice. The 
guidance is therefore aimed at statutory and non-statutory bodies working with 

victims, perpetrators and commissioning services, including the police, local 
authorities, and the NHS to increase awareness and inform their response to 
domestic abuse. It is also aimed at support organisations working with victims. 

Once the final guidance has been published, further information will be provided to 
the Board.  

 
3. Local authority statutory duties within the Act 

 

3.1 Part 4 of the Act places a statutory duty on local authorities in England to provide 
support to victims of domestic abuse and their children in refuges and other safe 

accommodation.  The Government has provided a statutory framework which 
outlines how local authorities are expected to meet the needs of this duty. This 
includes:  

 
1. Appoint a multi-agency Domestic Abuse Local Partnership Board which it will 

consult with as it performs certain specified functions. 
 

2. Assess the need for accommodation-based domestic abuse support in their area 

for all victims or their children, including those who come from outside the area. 
 

3. Develop and publish a strategy for the provision of such support to cover their 
locality, having regard to the needs assessment. 
 

Page 17

Agenda Item 4



 

 

4. Give effect to the strategy (through commissioning / de-commissioning decisions). 
 

5. Monitor and evaluate the effectiveness of the strategy. 
 

6. Report back to central government. 
 

7. Require tier two councils (district or borough councils, and London Boroughs) to 

co-operate with the lead local authority, so far as is reasonably practicable. 
 

8. Require the Secretary of State to produce statutory guidance, having consulted 
the Domestic Abuse Commissioner, local authorities and such as other persons 
as considered appropriate. 

 
9. Require local authorities to have regard to the statutory guidance in exercising 

their functions. 
 

10. Domestic Abuse Partnership Boards will be expected to report the Domestic 

Abuse Commissioner on their progress and performance. 
 
4. Sefton Domestic Abuse Partnership Board 

 
4.1 Sefton Domestic Abuse Partnership Board was established in September 2021 

and took over the responsibilities of the previous Sefton Domestic Abuse steering 
group. There is a legal requirement to have the following representatives included 

on the Board: 
 

 Local authority 

 Representative of victims of domestic abuse 

 Representative of children of victims of domestic abuse 

 Other VCF organisations working with domestic abuse victims 

 Health representative 

 Criminal justice representative. 
 

4.2  However, to ensure a wider range of agency involvement and to continue the 
good partnership work started by the previous domestic abuse steering group, the 
membership of the Board includes a number of other representatives as outlined 

in the Board’s Terms of Reference (see Appendix A). 
 

4.3 The roles and responsibilities of the Board are also outlined in the Terms of 
Reference.  Whilst there is a statutory requirement for the Board around meeting 
needs for safe accommodation, its has been agreed its functions will be wider 

than this and will provide the leadership for overseeing and coordinating domestic 
abuse related work across Sefton ensuring links with other local Boards are 

maintained. The Board is a strategic partnership and as such it is expected that 
agency membership and attendance is at a senior level. As the Board develops, 
consideration will be given to the development of sub/thematic groups that will be 

able to take forward Sefton’s Domestic Abuse Strategy action plan at a more 
operational level. 

 
4.4 One of the key requirements that the Board must fulfil is the undertaking of a 

domestic abuse needs assessment and the publishing of a Domestic Abuse 

Page 18

Agenda Item 4



 

 

Strategy. Following an open procurement process last year, a team of consultants 
were commissioned to undertake Sefton’s needs assessment and this work has 

been underway over the past 6 months.  The needs assessment will be used over 
the coming months to review Sefton’s Domestic Abuse Strategy and key priorities 

for action.   
 
5. Links to other national/statutory guidance 

 
5.1 Alongside guidance associated specifically with the Domestic Abuse Act, the 

Domestic Abuse Partnership Board are also cognisant of other relevant guidance 
and legislation and will ensure these are taken into account with the Domestic 
Abuse Strategy refresh and action planning. This includes (but is not limited to): 

 

 Specific housing related Government guidance issued on improving access to 

social housing for victims of domestic abuse, Allocation of Accommodation 
guidance for local authorities Housing legislation changes and national 
consultation exercises relating to housing victims of domestic abuse 

 

 The November 2021 Local Government and Social Care Ombudsman report 

on learning to improve council services for domestic abuse victims  
 
6. Cross partnership collaboration  

 
6.1 As outlined in the introduction, the impact of domestic abuse cuts across all 

agency services. To tackle it successfully we need to work in collaboration across 
departments, agencies and strategic Partnership Boards. To ensure this happens 

a range of activities will be needed alongside the work of Sefton Domestic Abuse 
Partnership Board. These include: 

 

 Building on the links established between Sefton Domestic Abuse Partnership 
Board, Safer Sefton Together Partnership, Sefton Safeguarding Children’s 

Partnership and Sefton Safeguarding Adults Board to ensure joint work is 
collaboratively supported and duplication is avoided. In particular, this will 
include sharing domestic abuse related learning from Domestic Homicide 

Reviews, Safeguarding Adults Reviews and Child Safeguarding Practice 
Reviews to improve services, practice delivery and training.  

 

 Continued participation and contribution to Liverpool city region partnerships 
such as the Merseyside Strategic Domestic Violence & Abuse Group, the 

Merseyside Strategic Sexual Violence Group, Community Safety Leads 
meetings around suicide prevention, DHR learning, domestic abuse 

perpetrator work. Information and activities will be fed into the Sefton 
Domestic Abuse Partnership Board 

 

 Updates to Cabinet Members and relevant Overview and Scrutiny meetings to 
report on progress. 

 
 

  

Page 19

Agenda Item 4



 

 

 
Appendix A 

 
Sefton Domestic Abuse Partnership Board 

Terms of Reference 
 
Purpose  

 
Following the enactment of the Domestic Abuse Bill on 30 April 2021, Local Authority 

areas have a duty to establish a Domestic Abuse Partnership Board.  
Sefton Domestic Abuse Partnership Board is a partnership group responsible for 
supporting Sefton Metropolitan Borough Council in meeting its duty under Part 4 of the 

Domestic Abuse Act.  
 

The Board will work together to support, advise, and work in partnership with Sefton 
Metropolitan Borough Council to ensure survivors of domestic abuse have access to 
adequate and appropriate support within safe accommodation services.  

 
The Board will work together to improve outcomes for survivors of domestic abuse, 

including their children, through a strategic approach to identifying and addressing gaps 
in support within safe accommodation services.  
 

Meeting Frequency  

 

The Board will meet on a bi monthly basis in the first year. This will be reviewed to 
ensure appropriate frequency, but as a minimum the Board will meet on a quarterly 
basis.   

 
Administrative support will be provided by the Communities department of Sefton 

Council.   
 
Membership 

 

The Board is made up of the following including those that by law must be represented.  

 
Position Organisation Representing 

Cabinet Member Housing and 
Communities  

Sefton Council Tier One Local 
Authority  

Localities Service Manager Sefton Council, 

Communities  

Tier One Local 

Authority 

Consultant in Public Health Sefton Council, Public 
Health 

Tier One Local 
Authority  

Director of Adults Social Care Sefton Council, Adult Social 
Care/Safeguarding 

Tier One Local 
Authority 

Service Manager  Sefton Council, Children’s 
Social Care 
 

Tier One Local 
Authority / voice of 
children  

Service Manager  Sefton Council, Housing & 

Investment Services  

Tier One Local 

Authority/ housing 
services  

Chief Executive Sefton Women’s and Survivors of domestic 

Page 20

Agenda Item 4



 

 

Children’s Aid (SWACA) abuse, adults and 
children  

Operations and Partnerships 

Lead 

Venus Survivors of domestic 

abuse 

Operations Manager RASA survivors of domestic 
abuse 

Designated Safeguarding 
Manager 

Southport and Formby and 
South Sefton Clinical 

Commissioning Groups 
 

Health care services 

Safeguarding Adults Specialist 

Nurse 

Southport and Ormskirk 

Hospital NHS Trust 
 

Health care services  

Safeguarding  Liverpool University 

Hospitals NHS Foundation 
Trust 

Health care services 

Head of Safeguarding Merseycare Health care services  

Independent Living Manager One Vision Housing  Housing services 

D/Inspector Protecting 

Vulnerable People Unit  

Merseyside Police Criminal services  

Head of Sefton PDU Probation Service  Criminal services  

Deputy Chief Executive Sefton Council for Voluntary 
Service (CVS) 

Voluntary and faith 
sector 

Community Engagement  Office for the Police and 

Crime Commissioner 
Merseyside 
 

 

 Merseyside Fire and 

Rescue Service 

 

 
 

The Board is chaired by Cllr Trish Hardy, Cabinet Member for Communities and 
Housing. 
 

The Vice Chair of the Board is Neil Frackelton, Chief Executive of Sefton Women’s and 
Children’s Aid (SWACA). 

 
Members of the Board are responsible for ensuring they report back and feed into the 
Board on behalf of their represented group / body.  

 
Roles and responsibilities  

 
The Board will:  
 

 provide strategic oversight of the issue of domestic abuse in Sefton by the 
commissioning, monitoring and evaluation of the Domestic Abuse Strategy for the 

borough. 
 

 provide advice and data to support Sefton Metropolitan Borough Council to undertake 
a robust local needs assessment to identify and understand the needs of domestic 

Page 21

Agenda Item 4



 

 

abuse survivors and their children within their area, including those that require highly 
specialist and cross-authority support. 

 

 ensure the preparation and publication of the future Domestic Abuse Strategy setting 

out the steps required to meet the needs of all survivors and their children. 
 

 hold agencies to account for the delivery of the actions within the Strategy by 

requesting regular updates on the agreed Action Plan within the Strategy.  
 

 consider the commissioning and decommissioning decisions in relation to domestic 
abuse services funded and provided in the borough. 

 

 support Sefton Metropolitan Borough Council to effectively engage with domestic 
abuse survivors and expert services in understanding the range and complexity of 

needs and to ensure their voice is clearly heard. 
 

 ensure that learning actions and recommendations from Sefton Domestic Homicide 
Reviews are taken forward and provide oversight to implementing multi agency 

practice and system change. 
 

 provide advice about the provision of other local authority domestic abuse support.  

 

 provide support in ensuring join up across other related areas such as housing, 

health, early years and childhood support, social services and police and crime 
services. 

 

 oversee the development and submission of an Annual Report outlining activity and 
progress made against the requirements in the Act. This will be shared with other 

local partnership Boards to ensure cross partnership working. 
 

 receive regular reports on the compliance of organisations against the requirements 
of the Act and its statutory guidance.  

 

 consider best practice, policy development and future opportunities for service 
improvement in this sector.  

 

  escalate issues to the relevant representative / body.  

 
Collaborative Working 

 

The Partnership Board will engage with other Partnership Boards from neighbouring 
areas and across the City Region. The Board will also engage with the existing Strategic 

Domestic Violence Action Group (SDVAG) led by Merseyside Police. The Board will also 
receive regular updates on the effectiveness of the MARAC from the MARAC Steering 
Group.  

 
In recognition that domestic abuse is a cross cutting theme that does not just sit within 

the responsibility of one area, the Board will develop and maintain close links with other 
multi agency forums such as:  
 

 Safer Sefton Community Partnership 

Page 22

Agenda Item 4



 

 

 Sefton Safeguarding Children’s Partnership 

 Local Safeguarding Adults Board 

This will be done through the sharing of actions/learning/tasks by members sitting on 
both the Board and other partnership forums. 

 
Absence  

 
Where members are unable to attend a meeting, they are responsible for informing the 
Board ahead of the meeting and, as far as possible, should ensure a representative is 

present on behalf of the organisation / body.  
 
Accountability 

 
The Board will provide strategic oversight on the issue of Domestic Abuse in Sefton.  

The Board will be accountable for its actions to its individual member organisations. 
Members of the Board are responsible for ensuring they report back and feed into the 

Board on behalf of their represented group(s) / body(ies) 
 
Board members will be accountable through their own organisations’ decision-making 

processes for the decisions they take. It is expected that Members of the Board will have 
delegated authority from their organisations to take decisions within the terms of 

reference and constitution of the Board. 
 
The Board will support Sefton Metropolitan Borough Council in reporting back to the 

Department for Levelling Up, Housing and Communities (DLUHC) on delivering the duty 
in line with statutory guidance and the standardised reporting form. 

 
For clarity, in relation to Domestic Homicide Reviews, the notification, decision making 
and final reporting of completed reviews will remain with Sefton Safer Communities 

Partnership.  The oversight for ensuring the recommendations and learning action plans 
are implemented and considered within future commissioning will be the responsibility of 

Sefton Domestic Abuse Partnership. 
 
The Terms of Reference for the Board will be reviewed on an annual basis by officers in 

the Communities department of Sefton Metropolitan Borough Council.  
 
Date Prepared:  V1 July 2021, V2 November 2021 
Date Agreed:  18 November 2021 
Date to be Reviewed: November 2022 

 
 
 

Page 23

Agenda Item 4



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

Report to: Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee 
(Children's Services 

and Safeguarding) 
 

Date of Meeting: Tuesday 27 
September 2022 

Subject: Children's Services Improvement Programme 
 

Report of: Executive Director 
of Children's Social 

Care and Education 
 

Wards Affected: (All Wards); 

Portfolio: Children’s Social Care 
 

Is this a Key 
Decision: 

N Included in 
Forward Plan: 

No 
 

Exempt / 
Confidential 

Report: 

N 
 

 
Summary: 

 
This report updates members of Scrutiny Committee (Children's Services and 
Safeguarding) on progress made and presents the Performance Dashboard for 

consideration. 
 

Recommendation(s): 

 
(1) Consider the Performance Dashboard at Annex A 

 
(2) Note the progress made and the priorities for the next quarter 

 
 
 
Reasons for the Recommendation(s): 

 

For members of the Committee to consider progress made to date and associated 
Performance Dashboard.  
 
Alternative Options Considered and Rejected: (including any Risk Implications) 

 

NA 
 
What will it cost and how will it be financed? 

 
(A) Revenue Costs 

 
There are no direct revenue implications with this report.  Members will be aware that there is 
significant financial pressure in the service within the current year in respect of agency costs 

and accommodation costs.  Remedial action plans have been presented and approved by 
Cabinet and Council.  Work will continue during the current year on budget monitoring within 

Page 25

Agenda Item 5



 

 

the service and any additional financial pressure or additional expenditure will need to be met 
from savings elsewhere within the Council. 

 
The Council’s next three year Medium Term Financial Plan will take account of this 

Improvement Programme and the resources required to support it; this will be informed by 
the Director of Children’s Services. 
 

 
(B) Capital Costs 

 

There are no direct capital implications with this report. 
 
 
Implications of the Proposals: 

 
Resource Implications (Financial, IT, Staffing and Assets):  

 

To support the implantation of the Family Valued model the Council has been approved 

to receive £3m.  To date £447k has been received. 

 

Following a successful bid to the Department for Education a further £300k has been 

approved to support the implementation of the Social Work Academy. 

 

 

Legal Implications: 

 
 

Equality Implications: 

There are no equality implications associated with this report.   

Climate Emergency Implications: 

 

The recommendations within this report will  

Have a positive impact  N 

Have a neutral impact Y 

Have a negative impact N 

The Author has undertaken the Climate Emergency training for 

report authors 

Y 

 
 

 
Contribution to the Council’s Core Purpose:  

 

Protect the most vulnerable:  The Improvement Programme seeks to deliver change 
across Children’s Services whose activity protects and supports those children and 
young people who have complex care needs 

Facilitate confident and resilient communities:  Children’s Services work with partners to 

support families in need of support and improve resilience.  
 

Commission, broker and provide core services: Activity within the Improvement 

Programme considers the Children’s Commissioned activity. 
Page 26

Agenda Item 5



 

 

 

Place – leadership and influencer:  The Council will take a lead role in work with 
partners to deliver change in Children’s Services.  

 

Drivers of change and reform: The Council will work with partners to deliver change in 
Children’s Services.  
 

 

Facilitate sustainable economic prosperity: NA 
 

Greater income for social investment: NA 

 

Cleaner Greener NA  
 

 

 
 
What consultations have taken place on the proposals and when? 

 
(A) Internal Consultations 

 
The Executive Director of Corporate Resources and Customer Services (FD6965) and the 
Chief Legal and Democratic Officer (LD5165) have been consulted and any comments have 

been incorporated into the report. 
 
(B) External Consultations  

 
The Executive Director Children’s Service and Education and his leadership team engage 

with partners across Sefton with regard to the Improvement Programme. 
 

The voice of children, young people and their families will be integral to delivering change. 
 
Implementation Date for the Decision 

 
Immediately following the Committee meeting. 

 
 
Contact Officer: Jan McMahon 

Telephone Number: Tel: 0151 934 4431 

Email Address: jan.mcmahon@sefton.gov.uk 
 

Appendices: 

 
The following appendices are attached to this report:  

 
Performance Dashboard 

 
Background Papers: 
 

  

Page 27

Agenda Item 5



 

 

1. Introduction 

 

1.1 The Children’s Improvement Programme comprises of four themes;  
 

 Quality - Ensuring the right staff are in the right place at the 
right time to deliver a consistent standard of good quality 
safeguarding services to children and families. 

 

 Improving Implementation of Learning - Using what we 

know and learn to continuously improve and enhance the 
services we deliver for children and families. 

 

 Improving Tools - Ensuring we have the right tools to 
enable the workforce to deliver good quality services for 

children and families. 
 

 Improving Strategic Partnerships - Effective partnership 
working to enable the delivery of common goals and a high 
quality multi-agency response for children and families. 

 
1.2 A phased approach is being taken to delivering change and this report updates on 

progress made and presents the Performance Dashboard for consideration. 
 

2. Progress 

 

2.1 A key priority has been ensuring a stable and experienced leadership team is in place 

to lead the change and develop a consistent standard of good quality services to 
children and families.  Significant progress has been made in recruiting a permanent 
Leadership team and Service Managers.  The table below details the current 

Leadership team position;  
 
  

Post Employment 
Status  

Executive Director - Children’s Social Care & Education Permanent 

 

Assistant Director Cared for Children Social Care Permanent 
 

Assistant Director Education Excellence Permanent 

Assistant Director for Quality Assurance, Safeguarding, 

Performance & Governance CSC 

Permanent 

Interim Assistant Director – Help and Protection 
 

Agency 

 

 
2.2 At the time of writing this report the recruitment for the permanent Assistant Director – 

Help and Protection is ongoing with the Employment Procedures Committee 

scheduled.  Also of the eleven Service Manager positions eight permanent staff are in 
post and recruitment activity is ongoing for the remaining three.   

 

Page 28

Agenda Item 5



 

 

 Wider recruitment of a permanent workforce remains challenging across Liverpool City 
Region and nationally. 

 
2..3 Over recent months Children’s Services have been collocated into Magdalen House 

and this will be key in delivering the required cultural change as it means that the 
senior leadership team is more visible, engaging with and listening to the workforce 
and increases the collaboration between Children’s Social Care and Education.   

 
2.4 Developing a new Quality Assurance Framework and creating a performance 

management culture are another key priority.  Over recent months significant progress 
has been made in the development of a Performance Dashboard through the creation 
of a Data Warehouse and the implementation of Power BI.  A phased approach has 

been taken towards this development and interim reports were in place by the end of 
July 2022 – these were created using extraction processes covering 146 data tables 

with over 7 million rows of data using over 15,500 lines of SQL code, but in simple 
terms this means that the reports are now automated and data refresh takes seconds 
opposed to hours/days.   

 
This provides the Executive Director, Assistant Directors, Service Managers and 

Team Managers with an accurate and systematically updated understanding of 

effectiveness and the team are beginning to use this to drive improvement and to 

develop a culture of performance management and accountability - supported by 

developments in performance management systems and new Practice Standards.  

The Practice Standards provide a clear measure of what good practice looks like and 

enables leaders to hold practitioners to account.  

 Members of the Committee are asked to consider the Performance Dashboard at 
Annex A. 

 

2.5 Creating a learning and reflective environment that enables good practice to grow and 
innovation to flourish. The Leadership Team want Practitioners to feel supported and 

part of the improvement journey.  A new Quality Assurance Framework is in 
development and this will ensure that the Management team have a clear 
understanding of the framework for understanding the effectiveness of practice, 

learning and improvement. 
 

 Themed audits have commenced and this has put in place routine and robust 
oversight of casework, in order to develop an accurate understanding of the quality of 
practice and identify training needs.  The views of families are being gathered and 

informing change. 
 

 The first Annual Staff Survey has commenced and this will provide a baseline for 
improvement. 

 

2.6 The Family Valued Model has been launched and so there is a clear approach in 
place for cultural change and driving innovation.  Family Valued was the strategy used 

in Leeds to improve services and outcomes for children and families. Its development 
was supported by funding from Phase One of the Department for Education Innovation 
Programme. The evaluation of Family Valued highlighted that it had a   number   of   

benefits, including   reducing   statutory   interventions   and   entry   to   care, 
strengthened practice, and improved recruitment and retention. The workforce and 

Page 29

Agenda Item 5



 

 

partners have a shared understanding of the model following successful launch 
events. 

 
2.7 Funding has been secured for a Social Work Academy in which the learning and 

development of all staff, including those staff the ASYE programme is held.  The 
Academy will launch in October 2022. 

 
3. Priorities for the Next Quarter  

  

3.1 Over the next few months the priorities are 
 

• Continued recruitment of permanent workforce  

• Considering staff survey feedback and developing an action plan 
• Embedding new Practice Standards 

• Development of Data Warehouse 
• Rollout of Power BI  
• Review of Business Support 

• Review of In house Fostering and care experienced offer.   
 

3.2 Members of the Committee are asked to note the progress made and the priorities for 
the next quarter. 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 

Page 30

Agenda Item 5



Power BI Desktop

14/09/2022 13:00:42

MASH Contact Starts by Month Over Last 12 Full Months

825
Prev Month: 1059(+22.1%)

MASH Contact Starts by Week Over Last 26 Full Weeks

268
Prev Week: 146(-83.56%)

Contact Starts Monthly

0

200

400

600

800

1,000

1,200

1,400

30 Septem…

31 Octo
ber 2020

30 November 2020

31 December 2020

31 January 2
021

28 Fe
bruary 2

021

31 March
 2021

30 April 2
021

31 May 2
021

30 June 2021

31 July 2
021

31 August 2
021

30 September 2021

31 Octo
ber 2021

30 November 2021

31 December 2021

31 January 2
022

28 Fe
bruary 2

022

31 March
 2022

30 April 2
022

31 May 2
022

30 June 2022

31 July 2
022

31 August 2
022

402
355

463
382 370 332

419 432
477

517 508

393

533

1081

1219

998

1186

990

1131

894

1142
1064 1059

825

Contacts

Contact Outcomes - Percentage (Previous 3 Full Months)

0%

20%

40%

60%

80%

100%

30 June 2022 31 July 2022 31 August 2022

31% 34%
40%

5%
29%

28%

27%

35% 31%
25%

Contact Outcome Group
Information and advice …
No further action
Other
Progress to Referral
Refer to Early Help
Refer to other agency

Contact Ends Monthly

0

200

400

600

800

1,000

1,200

1,400

30 September …

31 Octo
ber 2020

30 November 2020

31 December 2020

31 January 2
021

28 Fe
bruary 2

021

31 March
 2021

30 April 2
021

31 May 2
021

30 June 2021

31 July 2
021

31 August 2
021

30 September 2021

31 Octo
ber 2021

30 November 2021

31 December 2021

31 January 2
022

28 Fe
bruary 2

022

31 March
 2022

30 April 2
022

31 May 2
022

30 June 2022

31 July 2
022

31 August 2
022

336
406 395 424

376 344
413 404

477 486 514

382

490

1105

1240

1041
1103

1000

1176

811

1222

1029

1142

826

NB This step change was 
a result of a change in 
recording practice.

NB This step change was 
a result of a change in 
recording practice.

P
age 31

A
genda Item

 5



Power BI Desktop

14/09/2022 13:00:42

Referral Starts Monthly

0

100

200

300

400

500

30
Sept…
2020

31
Octo…
2020

30
Nove…
2020

31
Dece…
2020

31
Janu…
2021

28
Febr…
2021

31
March
2021

30
April
2021

31
May
2021

30
June
2021

31 July
2021

31
August
2021

30
Sept…
2021

31
Octo…
2021

30
Nove…
2021

31
Dece…
2021

31
Janu…
2022

28
Febr…
2022

31
March
2022

30
April
2022

31
May
2022

30
June
2022

31 July
2022

31
August
2022

288

224

257
236

219
205 203

226

312

277
255

209

349
378

447
461

434 441

399

321

396

348 341

281

Referrals

Percentage of Repeat Referrals in Month

0

5

10

15

20

Pe
rc

en
ta

ge
 (%

)

30
Septe…
2021

31
October

2021

30
Novem…

2021

31
Decem…

2021

31
January

2022

28
February

2022

31
March
2022

30 April
2022

31 May
2022

30 June
2022

31 July
2022

31
August
2022

17.0
17.7

18.4 18.0 17.9

19.6 19.8 20.2 20.7
21.8 21.8 22.3

Referral Ends Monthly

0

100

200

300

400

500

30
Sept…
2020

31
Octo…
2020

30
Nove…
2020

31
Dece…
2020

31
Janu…
2021

28
Febr…
2021

31
March
2021

30
April
2021

31
May
2021

30
June
2021

31 July
2021

31
August
2021

30
Sept…
2021

31
Octo…
2021

30
Nove…
2021

31
Dece…
2021

31
Janu…
2022

28
Febr…
2022

31
March
2022

30
April
2022

31
May
2022

30
June
2022

31 July
2022

31
August
2022

251
274

206

255
230

210 212 218

301
275 268

209

309

393

450
480

407
427 435

319

395

335
366

268

Open Cases at Week End (Core CSC Teams)

2,660

2,680

2,700

2,720

2,740

2,760

01
May
2022

08
May
2022

15
May
2022

22
May
2022

29
May
2022

05
June
2022

12
June
2022

19
June
2022

26
June
2022

03
July
2022

10
July
2022

17
July
2022

24
July
2022

31
July
2022

07
Aug…
2022

14
Aug…
2022

21
Aug…
2022

28
Aug…
2022

04
Sept…
2022

11
Sept…
2022

2660

27502758

2695
2694

2677

2737

2720

2741

2712

2730 2730

2686

2713
2708

2668

2689

2757 2758

2702Current Open Cases

2740

P
age 32

A
genda Item

 5



Power BI Desktop

14/09/2022 13:00:42

Open CiN Plans at Month End (Last 24 Full Months)

849
Prev Month: 877(+3.19%)

Open CiN Plans at Week End (Last 26 Full Weeks)

850
Prev Week: 845(-0.59%)

Child In Need (CiN) Plans
CiN Plan (Episode) Starts & Ends in Month

0

50

100

150

Co
un

t

30 September
2021

31 October
2021

30 November
2021

31 December
2021

31 January
2022

28 February
2022

31 March 2022 30 April 2022 31 May 2022 30 June 2022 31 July 2022 31 August 2022

79

96

122
133

113

175

152

98

115

82

119

89

57
66

83

47

87

103

144

76

141

122

95

117

StartedInPeriod EndedInPeriod

Open CiN Episodes by Month Over Last 4 Years

600

650

700

750

800

850

900

950

Jan 2019 Jan 2020 Jan 2021 Jan 2022

709

849

919

614

852

816

770

717727718731

804
853

737

797

755

877

739 779738732

791

Current Open
Episodes

855

P
age 33

A
genda Item

 5



Power BI Desktop

Open CP Episodes by Month Over Last 4 Years

200

250

300

350

400

30 Se…

31 Octo
be…

30 November …

31 December 2018

31 January 2
019

28 Fe
bruary 2

019

31 March
 2019

30 April 2
019

31 May 2
019

30 June 2019

31 July 2
019

31 August 2
019

30 September 2019

31 Octo
ber 2019

30 November 2019

31 December 2019

31 January 2
020

29 Fe
bruary 2

020

31 March
 2020

30 April 2
020

31 May 2
020

30 June 2020

31 July 2
020

31 August 2
020

30 September 2020

31 Octo
ber 2020

30 November 2020

31 December 2020

31 January 2
021

28 Fe
bruary 2

021

31 March
 2021

30 April 2
021

31 May 2
021

30 June 2021

31 July 2
021

31 August 2
021

30 September 2021

31 Octo
ber 2021

30 November 2021

31 December 2021

31 January 2
022

28 Fe
bruary 2

022

31 March
 2022

30 April 2
022

31 May 2
022

30 June 2022

31 July 2
022

31 August 2
022

271

415

219

281

255

289

233
248

286

258

284

249
242258

267

277
260

268

271
274

271

234

237
268

337

306

389

252253 269 268

292

373

259
277

271
272

229

313

391

240254

269
261 254

352

14/09/2022 13:00:42

Child Protection (CP) Episodes - Trends

CP Plan (Episode) Starts & Ends in Month

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

Co
un

t

30
September

2021

31 October
2021

30
November

2021

31
December

2021

31 January
2022

28
February

2022

31 March
2022

30 April
2022

31 May
2022

30 June
2022

31 July
2022

31 August
2022

22

12

50
54

36

23

64

34

57

44 43 44

35

22

15 16

22

16

40

19

36

28

41

20

StartedInPeriod EndedInPeriod

Current Open Episodes

405

Percentage of ICPCs in Timescale by Week End

0%

20%

40%

60%

80%

100%

Week End

Pe
rc

en
ta

ge
 (%

)

01
May
2022

08
May
2022

15
May
2022

22
May
2022

29
May
2022

05
June
2022

12
June
2022

19
June
2022

26
June
2022

03
July
2022

10
July
2022

17
July
2022

24
July
2022

31
July
2022

07
Aug…
2022

14
Aug…
2022

21
Aug…
2022

28
Aug…
2022

04
Sept…
2022

11
Sept…
2022

89% 86% 88% 86% 86% 82%

11% 14% 13% 14% 14% 18%

In time Overdue

Percentage of Plans Starting in Previous 12 Months with a Previous Plan within 24 Months At Start

0

5

10

15

Pe
rc

en
ta

ge
 (%

)

30
September

2021

31 October
2021

30
November

2021

31
December

2021

31 January
2022

28 February
2022

31 March
2022

30 April
2022

31 May
2022

30 June
2022

31 July 2022 31 August
2022

14.1 14.0
13.3

14.8
14.2

12.6

10.8
12.0 11.6

10.1 10.3
9.1

P
age 34

A
genda Item

 5



Power BI Desktop

14/09/2022 13:00:42

Cared for Children (CfC) - Trends
CfC Episode Starts & Ends in Month

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

Co
un

t

30 September …

31 Octo
ber 2020

30 November 2020

31 December 2020

31 January 2
021

28 Fe
bruary 2

021

31 March
 2021

30 April 2
021

31 May 2
021

30 June 2021

31 July 2
021

31 August 2
021

30 September 2021

31 Octo
ber 2021

30 November 2021

31 December 2021

31 January 2
022

28 Fe
bruary 2

022

31 March
 2022

30 April 2
022

31 May 2
022

30 June 2022

31 July 2
022

31 August 2
022

16 16

9

19 18

6

13

22

11

18

22

8

19

12
14 15

6

16

8

20

29

4

15 1413
10 11

16

11 10

18

12 13

21

14
11

19

3

24

18

13

9

18

11 12

StartedInMonth EndedInMonth
Open CfC Episodes by Month Over Last 4 Years

500

550

600

30 Se…

31 Octo
be…

30 November 2…

31 December 2018

31 January 2
019

28 Fe
bruary 2

019

31 March
 2019

30 April 2
019

31 May 2
019

30 June 2019

31 July 2
019

31 August 2
019

30 September 2019

31 Octo
ber 2019

30 November 2019

31 December 2019

31 January 2
020

29 Fe
bruary 2

020

31 March
 2020

30 April 2
020

31 May 2
020

30 June 2020

31 July 2
020

31 August 2
020

30 September 2020

31 Octo
ber 2020

30 November 2020

31 December 2020

31 January 2
021

28 Fe
bruary 2

021

31 March
 2021

30 April 2
021

31 May 2
021

30 June 2021

31 July 2
021

31 August 2
021

30 September 2021

31 Octo
ber 2021

30 November 2021

31 December 2021

31 January 2
022

28 Fe
bruary 2

022

31 March
 2022

30 April 2
022

31 May 2
022

30 June 2022

31 July 2
022

31 August 2
022

497

616
624

553

608

597

529

622

558

607

540

615

539

610609

527

616

534

606

614

541

612 612

616614

613
587

514

566

599

498

563

594

532 537
545

613
613

607
604 614

528

586
602

554

Meeting the Statutory Requirements for Health Assessments All Ages (%
CfC +12m)

0

20

40

60

80

100

30
Septe…
2021

31
Octo…
2021

30
Nove…
2021

31
Dece…
2021

31
Janua…
2022

28
Febru…
2022

31
March
2022

30
April
2022

31 May
2022

30
June
2022

31 July
2022

31
August
2022

92 90 90
86 89 90

94 95 94 94 95 95

Meeting the Statutory Requirement for Dental Checks (%)

0

20

40

60

80

30
Sept…
2021

31
Octo…
2021

30
Nove…
2021

31
Dece…
2021

31
Janu…
2022

28
Febr…
2022

31
March
2022

30
April
2022

31
May
2022

30
June
2022

31 July
2022

31
August
2022

64
67

71 73 74
75

74 73
70 69 67 66

Care Experienced
Activity Status
Category
 

Count Percent

In Education, Employment, or Training (EET) 95 50.0%
NEET - Illness or Disability 16 8.4%
NEET - Other 61 32.1%
NEET - Pregnancy/Parenting 15 7.9%
Not Recorded 3 1.6%
Total 190 100.0%

In Touch Status
Category Count

 

Percent

Within Last 91 Days 116 61.1%
Over 91 Days Ago 72 37.9%
No In Touch Date 2 1.1%
Total 190 100.0%

Current Open
Episodes

616

CfC number rates per
10,000

114

P
age 35

A
genda Item

 5



Power BI Desktop

14/09/2022 13:00:42

Children's Social Care Workforce Report Summary Agency Placements Across Children's Services

NB Latest information provided by HR for the workforce data.

P
age 36

A
genda Item

 5



 

 

Report to: Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee 
(Children’s Services 

and Safeguarding) 
 

Cabinet 
 

Date of Meeting: 27 September 2022 
 
 

 
 

6 October 2022 

Subject: Education Excellence Strategy for Sefton 2022-2027 
 

Report of: Assistant Director 
Children’s Services 
(Education) 

 

Wards Affected: (All Wards); 

Portfolio: Cabinet Member - Education 
 

Is this a Key 

Decision: 
Y Included in 

Forward Plan: 
Yes  
 

Exempt / 
Confidential 

Report: 

No 
 

 
Summary: 

 

This is a dual committee report which seeks to present to Overview & Scrutiny 
Committee (Children’s Services and Safeguarding) and Cabinet the Education 

Excellence Strategy for Sefton 2022-2027. It will set out how it has been developed, and 
the proposed next steps in terms of programme development. 
 
 
Recommendation(s): 

 
(1) That Overview & Scrutiny Committee (Children’s Services and Safeguarding) receive 
the Education Excellence Strategy for Sefton 2022-2027 for noting.  

 
(2) That Cabinet approve the Education Excellence Strategy for Sefton 2022-2027. 

 
 
Reasons for the Recommendation(s): 

 
To ensure that the priorities of the Education Excellence Strategy for Sefton 2022-2027 

and wider Education initiatives are aligned to the delivery of Sefton’s 2030 vision, the 
Sefton Health & Wellbeing Strategy and the Sefton Children and Young Peoples Plan, 
and that they are clearly articulated to parents, carers, young people, residents, early 

years providers, schools, colleges, providers of SEND education, as well as Health 
providers and other partners across Sefton and its neighbouring boroughs, in addition to 

the Department for Education. 
 
To ensure that all children and young people receive an education in Sefton which 

enables them to reach their individual potential, have a clear pathway to further 
education, employment and engage positively with others in their community. 

 

Page 37

Agenda Item 7



 

 

Alternative Options Considered and Rejected: (including any Risk Implications) 

 

Not Applicable 
 
What will it cost and how will it be financed? 
 

There are no direct cost implications due to the delivery of the Strategic Documentation, 

where costs are to be incurred for specific programmes of work the appropriate decision-
making process will be followed to obtain approval for any associated spend. 

 
(A) Revenue Costs  

There are no direct revenue implications associated with this Strategic Documentation 

Report.  All programmes of work highlighted will either be fully funded through existing 
resources or will be reported to Members for additional funding and approval before 

commencement.  
 
 
(B) Capital Costs - None 
 

Implications of the Proposals: 

 
Resource Implications (Financial, IT, Staffing and Assets):  
 

No direct implications due to the delivery of the Strategic Documentation, where these 
are to be incurred for specific programmes of work the appropriate decision-making 

process will be followed to obtain approval for any associated resources required. 
 

Legal Implications: 

 

There are no legal implications 
 

Equality Implications: 

 
There are no equality implications 
 

Climate Emergency Implications: 
 

The recommendations within this report will  

Have a positive impact  Y 

Have a neutral impact Y 

Have a negative impact N 

The Author has undertaken the Climate Emergency training for 
report authors 

Y 

 

It is envisaged that the strategy will have a positive impact (or at the very least neutral 
impact) on the current climate emergency by engaging / informing and educating 
children and young people (and their families) about the effects of climate change and 

ways to reduce its impact, through curriculum and extra curriculum content.  
 

As well as teaching and training the next generation of researchers, scientists, 
conservationists, planers, and educators etc who will all help longer term come up with 

Page 38

Agenda Item 7



 

 

new and innovative ways to reduce emissions, do things differently and help protect the 
planet. 
 

 
Contribution to the Council’s Core Purpose:  

 

Protect the most vulnerable: 

 
The strategy has a section dedicated and focused on supporting the most 

disadvantaged to ensure that their life chances are not impacted on, as well as focusing 
on Children & Young People Not in education, training, or activity unknow in Sefton. 
 

Facilitate confident and resilient communities: 

 
This strategy aims to further develop a partnership approach to service delivery in 

conjunction with our communities, ensuring alignment to key principles of inclusion as 
well as recognising the role of voluntary organisations. 
 

Commission, broker and provide core services: 
 
The strategy sets out a strategic direction and clear priorities for educational services 

over the next five years 
 

Place – leadership and influencer: 

 
The strategy supports the wider 2030 vision for Sefton 
 

Drivers of change and reform: 

 
This strategy supports the delivery of the Council’s ambitious change programme and 

2030 vision. 
 

Facilitate sustainable economic prosperity: 
 

The strategy is designed to support the wider Growth priorities of the Council by 
ensuring all children receive an education which enables them to reach their potential, 

have a clear pathway to further education, employment and engage positively with 
others in their community. 
 

Greater income for social investment:  
 
The potential for added Social Value will be included within the underpinning work 

programmes where appropriate 
 

Cleaner Greener 

 
Many of the core themes within the strategy, such as having High Quality Curriculums, 
will contribute to a wider community understanding of the effects of and ways to reduce 

carbon emissions within Sefton. 
 

 

Page 39

Agenda Item 7



 

 

What consultations have taken place on the proposals and when? 

 
(A) Internal Consultations 

 

The Executive Director of Corporate Resources and Customer Services (FD.6955/22) 
and the Chief Legal and Democratic Officer (LD.5155/22) have been consulted and any 
comments have been incorporated into the report. 

 
(B) External Consultations  

 
Consultation has taken place with 

 Children & Young People 

 The Parent & Carer Forum 

 Parents, Carers, family members and the wider community / partners 

 Early Years providers, Schools, Colleges, and other settings 

 Head Teachers / Sefton Association of Primary & Secondary Headteachers 
 
Implementation Date for the Decision 

 
Following the expiry of the “call-in” period for the Minutes of the Cabinet Meeting 
 
Contact Officer: Nicola Robson 

Telephone Number: 0151 934 4664 

Email Address: nicola.robson@sefton.gov.uk 
 
Appendices: 

 

The following appendices are attached to this report:  
 

Draft Education Excellence Strategy for Sefton 2022-2027 
 
Background Papers: 

 

There are no background papers available for inspection. 

 
1.  Introduction/Background  
 

1.1 The local authority has a clear statutory duty to promote Education Excellence 
and the highest standards for all Sefton children; irrespective of what 

establishment they attend. These duties are outlined in recently Published key 
documents by the Department for Education. 

Schools White Paper, 28 March 2022 - The White Paper covers teaching and 

leadership in schools, preventing and tackling under-performance, curriculum 

reform, governance & standards, and fair funding for schools, which is the subject 
of a separate consultation. Every school to become an academy.  

SEND and Alternative Provision (AP) green paper: responding to the 

consultation The green paper has been published alongside a white paper: 
Opportunities for All: Strong Schools with Great Teachers for Your Child. It sets 

out the government’s vision for new attainment targets in literacy and numeracy, 
an academy-led education system and a drive to increase attendance).  

Page 40

Agenda Item 7



 

 

A combination of the statutory duty and the newly published documents combined 
with the need to refresh the current strategy, has resulted in the consultation and 

creation of this draft strategy.  

1.2  The Education Excellence Strategy for Sefton 2022-27 is intended to be an 
overarching plan which articulates the council’s ambitions of helping every young 

person in Sefton to unlock the door to more choices and opportunities. It is based 
on key priorities identified within the 2030 Vision for Sefton, Sefton’s Health & 
Wellbeing Strategy 2020-2025, Sefton’s Children & Young People Plan 2020-

2025 and Sefton’s Joint Strategic Needs Assessment.  
 

This high-level strategic document is split into four key priorities 
o Excellent teachers supported by excellent staff 
o Raise achievement and ensure young people have the life skills to prepare 

for adulthood 
o All Children and young people achieve their full potential people 

o School Systems to Support Children and their Families 
 
1.3  Each of the priorities has a series of key actions within them which collectively 

seek to help deliver a vision of Excellence in Sefton - All children and young 
people receive an education in Sefton which enables them to reach their individual 

potential, have a clear pathway to further education, employment and engage 
positively with others in their community.  

 

1.4 These actions are contained with a plan from page 13 onwards of the document, 
which sets out how the Local Authority and its partners will deliver over the 

coming years. (The plan purposely has blank space available to allow induvial 
schools and the Sefton Schools Improvement Groups to use it as a live document, 
as well as naming the lead teams from the Local Authority for the areas of work). 

 
2 Strategy Development 

 
2.1  Significant engagement activity has been undertaken to ensure alignment of the 

key priorities within the strategy to core priorities within the outlined publications 

from the Department of Education and 2030 vision for Sefton along with other key 
Sefton documents. 

 
2.2 Consultation took place over a five-month period to ensure that the views of a 

wide range of individuals, educational establishments and their senior staff and 

partners was gathered via an online survey, virtual discussion, face to face 
meetings and workshops.  The culmination of which is the document presented.   

 
2.3  Over the next five years the delivery of the Strategy will be reflected in the 

development of key programmes of work. The progress and impact of the strategy 

will be driven through the current Education Governance structure, as well as 
other boards or subgroups as required, which will be accountable for the delivery 

of the priorities outlined in the Strategy. This progress will be reported regularly 
and where required by exception. 

 

3 Next Steps 
 

Page 41

Agenda Item 7



 

 

3.1  Following strategy approval the document will be published and shared widely 
with schools, colleges, providers, parents, carers, young people and partners. 

 
3.2 Each service with Education Excellence will focus on the key priorities in their 

service plans which will include measurable outcomes to evidence impact and 
improvement. 
 

3.3 The work streams will be monitored and reported regularly to ensure that the 
children and young people in Sefton are indeed receiving the highest standards 

possible. 
 
3.4 The Strategy is therefore presented to Overview & Scrutiny Committee (Children’s 

Services and Safeguarding) and Cabinet for approval, with immediate adoption 
following the mandated call-in period 

 
 

Page 42

Agenda Item 7



Draft Education Excellence 
Strategy for Sefton
2022 - 2027
Education and training will enable every 
young person to unlock the door to more 
choices and opportunities

DRAFT

P
age 43

A
genda Item

 7



Education Excellence Strategy for Sefton 2022 - 2027

PAGE 2

Contents
Foreword ..................................................................................................................3

Background .............................................................................................................4

 Sefton 2030 Vision .........................................................................................4

 Sefton Health and Wellbeing Strategy – Living Well in                                      
 Sefton 2020-2025 ..........................................................................................4

 Sefton Children and Young People’s Plan 2020/2025: My Sefton,                   
 Happy, Healthy, Achieving, Heard ..............................................................4

 Emotional Health & Wellbeing Strategy ...................................................5

Education Excellence in Sefton – Vision ...........................................................6

Education - National Context ..............................................................................6

Education – Local Context ....................................................................................6

Covid 19 Pandemic ................................................................................................6

Children and Young People Not in Education, Employment or                      
Training (NEET) or Activity Unknown in Sefton ...............................................9

A sharper focus on the disadvantaged .............................................................10

Education Excellence – Priorities ........................................................................11

 Priority 1. Children are ready for school ....................................................12

 Priority 2. Raise achievement and ensure young people have                               
 the life skills so they are well prepared for adulthood. .........................13

 Priority 3. Children and young people with Special                                      
 Educational Needs and/or disabilities achieve their full potential .....15

 Priority 4. School Systems to Support Children and their Families .....16

How will we make this happen? .........................................................................17

 Governance: .....................................................................................................17

 Partnership: ......................................................................................................18

Delivering Our Priorities: .......................................................................................19

 Priority 1. Children are ready for school ....................................................19

 Priority 2. Raise achievement and ensure young people                                         
 have the life skills so they are well prepared for adulthood. ...............20

 Priority 3. Children and young people with Special Educational                        
 Needs and/or disabilities achieve their full potential ............................21

 Priority 4. Children and young people with Special Educational                       
 Needs and/or disabilities achieve their full potential ............................22

P
age 44

A
genda Item

 7



Education Excellence Strategy for Sefton 2022 - 2027

PAGE 3

Foreword
Welcome to the 2022-2027 Education Excellence Strategy for Sefton.

On the 28th  March 2022 the Government published the ‘Opportunity for all: strong 
schools with great teachers for your child’ White Paper. The White Paper sets out 
proposed reforms to the education system, focussed on providing an excellent teacher 
for every child, delivering high standards of curriculum, behaviour and attendance, 
targeted support for every child that needs it and a stronger and fairer school system. 
A key focus of the white paper is helping all children meet their potential with the right 
support at the right time, to ensure every child is supported with their education and 
broader development and well-being as we come out of the pandemic and beyond.   
In addition to this a SEND Green Paper has also been published outlining details of a 
reformed Special Educational Needs and Disability (SEND) education system which sets 
out to improve provision and inclusivity, to support children with SEND in mainstream 
and specialist settings to ensure consistently high standards in line with new national 
standards.  The Green paper seeks to address three key challenges for children with 
SEND which are 

 ■ poor outcomes for children and young people with SEN or in alternative 
provision

 ■ navigating the SEND system and alternative provision is not a positive 
experience for children, young people, and their families and

 ■ Despite unprecedented investment, the system is not delivering value for 
money for children, young people and families.

It is with these 2 Government papers as the backdrop that I am pleased to share 
with you the 2022-2027 Education Excellence Strategy for Sefton, and I welcome the 
emphasis on helping all children meet their potential .

In Sefton our children and young people are the future and as such should have access 
to outstanding early years opportunities and receive the best quality education and 
support to engage positively with others in their community. They have told us we 
need to instill the right life skills and not judge young people by numbers and grades 
only. We want our children and young people to enjoy learning, make good progress 
which will enable them to aspire to achieve the highest outcomes so that every child 
and young person has a successful transition to adulthood. We will do this by working 

in partnership with our early years providers and schools to ensure first class education 
opportunities.

In developing this strategy, we have considered our Joint Strategic Needs Assessment 
and reflected on many of the plans and previous engagement activity within Sefton 
including the Children and Young People’s Plan, the Emotional health and Wellbeing 
Plan as well as our partnership Vison for 2030. In doing so we have linked closely to the 
four themes in the Children and Young People’s Plan – Heard, Happy, Healthy, Achieving.

Our vision is that, ‘All children and young people should receive an education in Sefton 
which enables them to reach their individual potential and to engage positively with 
others in their community’ is echoed throughout all our intended actions and impact.

Over the last two years we have made significant improvements across our Local Area 
respect of SEND and our work with schools during the pandemic has meant that the 
approach to partnership working has never been stronger. We intend to build on this 
partnership approach and ensure that children and young people are at the forefront of 
our recovery plans.

Our partnership working is key to ensuring the success of the strategy and ensuring that 
all our children and young people succeed. We will work closely with our partners and 
link closely to the Children and Young People’s Plan to ensure a joined-up approach that 
supports all our children and young people’s life chances.

The strategy demonstrates the Council’s role in system leadership, facilitating school 
leaders to lead school improvement and school to school support and sets out the clear 
priorities which will address the key themes and measure the progress towards the key 
actions.

Councillor Diane Roscoe     
Cabinet Member, Education Excellence

P
age 45

A
genda Item

 7



Education Excellence Strategy for Sefton 2022 - 2027

PAGE 4

Background Sefton 2030 Vision
Sefton Council led on the development of an exciting partnership vision for the Borough 
of Sefton called Sefton 2030. When developing the vision partners worked closely 
with our communities, including children and young people, to understand what was 
important to them.   This is our single strategic and overarching partnership approach 
for the borough.  

Sefton Health and Wellbeing Strategy – Living Well in 
Sefton 2020-2025
Sefton’s Health and Wellbeing Strategy takes an all-age approach (Start Well, Live Well, 
Age Well) to meaningful health and wellbeing for the people who live in Sefton.  The 
overarching aims for Start Well are:

 ■ Every child will achieve the best start in their first 1001 days 

 ■ Education and training will enable every young person to unlock the door to 
more choices and opportunities 

 ■ Every child and young person will have a successful transition to adulthood 

In 2025 we will know if we have made a difference by raising the percentage of 
children achieving a good level of development from 69% to 74%; continue to reduce 
the proportion of our 16 – 17 Not in Education and Training (NEET) and improve the 
experience of transitions as measured by our annual survey and having a fully adopted 
joint transitions pathway.

Sefton Children and Young People’s Plan 2020/2025:    
My Sefton, Happy, Healthy, Achieving, Heard
This plan sets out how we intend to maximize the health and wellbeing of all our 
children and young people living in Sefton. 

Sefton Council, NHS South Sefton Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG) and NHS 
Southport and Formby CCG, have agreed a series of priorities for future services and 
support.  These priorities are based on what children, young people and their families 
have told us of their experiences and what we know about their current care.

We used Sefton’s Joint Strategic Needs Assessment to inform the plan to seek to ensure 
that children and young people’s needs are understood and met. It is based around the 
four themes of: 

 ■ Heard 

 ■ Happy 

 ■ Healthy 

 ■ Achieving 

The Education Excellence Strategy is 
based around these four themes and 
our plan will reflect and complement its 
priorities and outcomes.

Heard

Healthy

Happy

Achieving

The Education Excellence 
Strategy

P
age 46

A
genda Item

 7



Education Excellence Strategy for Sefton 2022 - 2027

PAGE 5

Emotional Health & Wellbeing Strategy 
The mental health of children and young people has been disproportionately impacted 
by the pandemic, adding to an already worsening national trend of mental health 
decline. Approximately 200,000 young people are referred to specialist mental 
health services each year in England which places these services under considerable 
pressure. Poor emotional health and wellbeing in childhood can have a lasting impact 
into adulthood. Having a trusted adult that children and young people can confide in 
is important, especially if the child or young person has experienced, or is at risk of 
experiencing adverse childhood experiences. 

High levels of inequality are also damaging to mental health and emotional well-being. 
Growing up in deprivation means an increased risk of chronic exposure to stress and 
adverse conditions. These can have lasting impact on the mental health and wellbeing 
of someone across their life course and lead to the disproportionate burden of mental ill 
health being experienced by our most vulnerable residents. 

Sefton has made good progress over recent years in improving and expanding its 
service offer to children and young people – including KOOTH, Mental Health Support 
Teams, etc - ensuring it meets their needs and is accessible to all. We will continue to 
work with education to improve their ability to support children and young people to 
stay in education. Part of this will include ensuring that schools and colleges implement 
all new guidance/initiatives and best practice in a structured and impactful way. 
Consistency and equitable coverage is key when considering the education practices in 
order to benefit children and young people regardless of where they are in Sefton. This 
work will complement the Sefton Children and Young People’s Emotional Wellbeing 
Strategy 2021-26 and the Children and Young People’s Plan 2020/25.

P
age 47

A
genda Item

 7



Education Excellence Strategy for Sefton 2022 - 2027

PAGE 6

Education Excellence                   
in Sefton – Vision
All children and young people receive an education in Sefton which enables them  
to reach their individual potential, have a clear pathway to further education, 
employment and engage positively with others in their community.

Education - National Context
The Department for Education strategy 2015 to 2020: world-class education and care 
has yet to be updated.  The COVID 19 pandemic impacted significantly on children’s 
school life and this led to education attainment data not being gathered at local area 
and national level during 2019-2020 and 2020-2021.  Schools continue to assess and 
monitor attainment and progress locally.  Young people were assessed at GCSE and A 
Level in 2019 – 2020 through the Centre Assessment Grades (CAG) and awarded grades 
accordingly.  In 2020 – 2021 GCSE and A Level grades were awarded through Teacher 
Assessed Grades (TAG).  

The local authority has clear statutory duties to promote excellence and the highest 
standards for all Sefton children; irrespective of what establishment they attend and 
this includes; -

Schools White Paper, 28 March 2022 - The White Paper covers teaching and 
leadership in schools, preventing and tackling under-performance, curriculum reform, 
governance & standards and fair funding for schools, which is the subject of a separate 
consultation. Every school to become an academy. 

SEND and Alternative Provision (AP) green paper: responding to the consultation The 
green paper has been published alongside a white paper: Opportunities for All: Strong 
Schools with Great Teachers for Your Child . It sets out the government’s vision for new 
attainment targets in literacy and numeracy, an academy-led education system and a 
drive to increase attendance.

The Education and Adoption Bill - this introduced measures to improve school 
standards across the country, as part of the Government’s commitment to delivering 
real social justice.  These measures are intended to speed up the process by which 
failing maintained schools become sponsored academies, ensuring there is no delay in 
giving children the education they deserve. 

The Special Education Needs (SEN) Code of Practice January 2015 outlines the 
statutory duties of head teachers and principals, governing bodies, school and college 
staff, SEN coordinators and early education providers providing for pupils with SEN 
through the graduated approach to meeting needs from Quality First Teaching through 
to the Education, Health and Care Plan, (EHCP) assessment and review process.

P
age 48

A
genda Item

 7



Education Excellence Strategy for Sefton 2022 - 2027

PAGE 7

There were an estimated 797,000 young people in the UK who were NEET in October to 
December 2020; this increased by 39,000 compared with July to September 2020 and 
was up by 34,000 compared with October to December 2019.

The new National Disability Strategy came into force on 28th July 2021. It sets out to 
improve the lives of all people with disabilities. It is split into four parts including the 
introduction; part 1 the immediate commitments to improving disabled people’s lives; 
part 2 including people in policy making and service delivery and part 3 which focuses 
on a summary of the actions each government department will take. 

The education section focuses on a review of actions to improve outcomes for children 
with SEND; increasing funding; extending continuing professional development and 
investing to strengthen parents and young people’s participation; improving supported 
internships and increasing the number of disabled people undertaking apprenticeships

Education – Local Context
Over recent years the educational landscape has changes, the local authority (LA) 
exercises a range of roles and responsibilities with local education providers. The LA 
works positively with maintained faith and community schools, alternative provision, 
early years settings, special schools, academies, sponsors, independent schools and 
further and adult education providers who comprise a part of the mixed economy 
of local education provision. We view the local authority as the system leader and a 
champion for all the learners in the borough. Our approach to excellence in education 
and learning is a collaborative one, working in partnership with key groups to improve 
knowledge and expertise across the borough.

Covid 19 Pandemic 
Throughout the pandemic Education Excellence teams worked closely with schools 
providing both support and challenge.  Together they implemented new ways of 
working, Some of the changes that have taken place include the creation of the 
Education Collaborative Group, born out of the weekly Covid Schools’ and Children’s 
Services Cell Group. 

All schools experienced disruption during this period and the majority of children and 
young people in Sefton have had a period of time when they were not in school but 
accessing remote learning and as a result their learning was disrupted.   The pandemic 
had a massive impact on the emotional health and wellbeing of many children and 
young people and through our Emotional Health and Wellbeing offer we are working 
hard to ensure they can access support early and that our schools are equipped to 
support them.

P
age 49

A
genda Item

 7



Education Excellence Strategy for Sefton 2022 - 2027

PAGE 8

40,374  
CHILDREN AND 
YOUNG PEOPLE

EARLY YEARS CHILDREN 

 ■ Jan 21 census we funded:    
720 x 2 yr olds and 3757 x 3/4 yr olds   
(on the universal 15 hrs offer)    
Total of 4477 children.

(Also to note that the figures for Jan 21 were low, due to   
slightly reduced funding claims due to the pandemic).

 ■ 38,123 pupils on roll across primary, secondary 
and special schools 

ETHNICITY 

 ■ 10% of the school children in Sefton are of 
Black, Asian, or Minority Ethnic (BAME) heritage 
compared to 34% Nationally

 ■ 6% have English as an additional language 
(EAL) (up slightly on the previous year), 
compared to 19% Nationally and 15% in the 
Northwest

OCTOBER 2021 SCHOOL CENSUS DATA

 ■ Total school population 40,047 Children

 ■ Number of children with an Education, Health & 
Care Plan 3.6% (1432)

 ■ Number of children with SEN support 12.1% 
(4,839)

 ■ Number of children receiving no extra support 
84.3% (33,776)

102
SCHOOLS

 ■ 3 Nursery Schools

 ■ 3 Infant Schools

 ■ 2 Junior Schools

 ■ 70 Primary Schools

 ■ 19 Secondary Schools

 ■ 5 Special Schools

 ■ 2 pupil referral unit and  1 14 to 16 
college

 ■ 1 School Improvement Board

 ■ 6 school improvement groups 

 ■ Education Collaboration Group

 ■ SAPH - Sefton Association of 
Primary Headteachers

 ■ SASH - Sefton Association of 
Secondary Headteachers

222 
EARLY YEARS 
PROVIDERS

 ■ 45 nurseries

 ■ 25 pre-schools

 ■ 71 childminders

 ■ 23 standalone holiday 
playschemes/out of school clubs

 ■ 55 schools with 
nurseries(maintained/academies)

 ■ 3 independent school nurseries

86%
Early Years settings to 
be judged by OfSTED to 
be good or better

73%
Of Schools judged by 
OfSTED to be good or 
better (83% Primary 
Schools and 63% 
Secondary)

3.5%
SEND NEET for 16-24 
year olds has reduced 
2.5% year on year

P
age 50

A
genda Item

 7



Education Excellence Strategy for Sefton 2022 - 2027

PAGE 9

Children and Young People 
Not in Education, Employment 
or Training (NEET) or Activity 
Unknown in Sefton
A young person aged 16 to 24 who is not currently in education, employment or 
training is considered to be NEET. They are considered to be in education or training if:-

 ■ they are enrolled on an education course and are still attending or waiting 
for term to (re)start

 ■ they are doing an apprenticeship
 ■ they are on a government supported employment or training programme
 ■ they are working or studying towards a qualification, or
 ■ they have had job-related training or education in the last 4 weeks

“In employment” includes all people in some form of paid work, including those 
working part-time.  People not in employment are classed as either unemployed or 
economically inactive. Unemployed people are those who have been looking for work 
in the past 4 weeks and who are available to start work within the next 2 weeks. 
Economically inactive people are those who have not been looking for work and/or 
who are not available to start work. Examples of economically inactive people include 
those not looking for work because they are students and those who are looking after 
dependents at home. These definitions are based on those recommended by the 
International Labour Organisation (ILO).

Activity Unknown refers to young people with an unknown education, employment or 
training status.

 ■ As of July 2021 Sefton currently has the lowest percentage of NEET and 
unknown young people across the Liverpool City Region (3.8%).   

 ■ Sefton is performing better than the North West NEET & Not Known 
combined measure

 ■ Sefton is performing better than the England NEET & Not Known  
combined measure

P
age 51

A
genda Item

 7



Education Excellence Strategy for Sefton 2022 - 2027

PAGE 10

A sharper focus on the disadvantaged 
The priority across Sefton and the wider partnerships is to sharpen our focus on the 
most disadvantaged groups of children in our education settings and communities.  We 
know that children and young people with SEND; children and young people eligible for 
free school meals (FSM); looked after children (LAC); Black, Asian and Minority Ethnic 
(BAME) groups and those in need of protection still perform less well than their peers. 
This has a negative impact on their life chances.

 ■ We will hold high aspirations for these children and work together across all 
education settings and across the system to improve their life chances.

 ■ We will collectively act as champions for vulnerable children and young 
people by using achievement, attendance and exclusion data, safeguarding 
intelligence and learner and parent/carer voice data to support and 
challenge each other when we recognise that these children and young 
people are not being well served. 

 ■ We will target our resources to improve outcomes and opportunities for 
these children and young people, using evidence-based approaches to 
secure improvements. 

 ■ We will strive to ensure that as many of our young people in Sefton 
continue to participate in education, training or employment after the age 
of 16 through tracking their participation rates and ensuring that rates of 
NEET are kept as low as possible

 ■ We will continue to ensure that additional support for NEET young people 
who are vulnerable are supported from the age of 14 to enable them to re-
engage in learning We will learn from each other and share what is working 
well to secure outcomes for all children regardless of their educational 
or physical needs, their family background, the school they attend or the 
neighbourhood where they live.

 ■ We will work in partnership with our schools, Children’s Social Care and 
other partners to ensure that all our care leavers are supported in making 
the right choices for their future education or training enabling them to 
make a positive transition. 

 ■ We will ensure there are pathways for young people whose education 
outcomes have missed their full potential to re-enter education, training or 
employment after the age of 19 which build upon their employability and 
enable them to move into sustainable prosperity

P
age 52

A
genda Item

 7



Education Excellence Strategy for Sefton 2022 - 2027

PAGE 11

Education Excellence Strategy for Sefton 2022 - 2027

PRIORITY 1
 Excellent teachers 

supported by excellent 
staff

PRIORITY 2
Raise achievement and 

ensure young people have 
the life skills to prepare for 

adulthood

PRIORITY 3 PRIORITY 4
All Children and young 

people achieve their full 
potential people

School Systems to Support 
Children and their Families

P
age 53

A
genda Item

 7



Education Excellence Strategy for Sefton 2022 - 2027

PAGE 12

Priority 1. Excellent teachers supported by   
excellent staff (Excellent teacher)
We know high quality education is the greatest liberator so want all pupils to be 
taught by excellent teachers and make at least ‘good progress’ in every year of their 
education. Teachers will be supported by a fully trained workforce enabling them to 
provide outstanding teaching and learning.

This can only be achieved through partnership work with key partners including Sefton 
School Improvement Group, School Improvement Board, School Centred Initial Teacher 
Training, research schools, hubs and ensuring high quality professional development 
opportunities for all staff.  Giving all teachers and school leaders access to world class 
evidence based training and professional development at every stage of their career 
will help recruit and retain high quality teachers.

In Sefton we realise the quality of teaching is the single most important school factor 
in improving outcomes for children, especially those from disadvantaged backgrounds.  
Leadership and  classroom teaching influence children’s’ learning.

We will:
 ■ Support school leaders and staff in ensuring a culture to address well-

being and take account of teacher workload

 ■ Ensure a robust system of challenge and support where all teachers work 
in a good or better setting and a high quality workforce is retained across 
Sefton Children’s Social Care

 ■ Collaborate with school leaders and stakeholders to ensure the 
recruitment and retention of effective practitioners in order that the 
education system in Sefton provides an inclusive education, good 
outcomes, meets the needs of all children and raises their aspirations 
preparing them for the next stage in their education and lives.

 ■ In partnership provide a range of evidence based, effective continuing 
professional development programmes e.g. Support with Early Career 
Teacher, quality leadership development programme, National 
Professional Qualification, research projects, trauma informed practice

 ■ Engage with and support schools to engage with the new Leadership 
Special Educational Needs Coordinator NPQ proposed by the SEND Green 
Paper

 ■ Ensure a system wide approach to whole school development in relation 
to school staff’s SEND knowledge and training received.

 ■ Adopt the Family Valued approach which aims to work restoratively and 
relationally with children and families in a way which respects and values 
their experience.

Education Excellence – Priorities
Key to achieving our priorities - We have drawn our priorities from the White paper ‘Opportunities for All’ in collaboration with key stakeholders.

P
age 54

A
genda Item

 7



Education Excellence Strategy for Sefton 2022 - 2027

PAGE 13

Priority 2.  Raise achievement and ensure young 
people have the life skills to prepare for adulthood. 
(High quality curriculum and attendance, behaviour)
Every child will be taught a broad and ambitious curriculum in a school with high 
expectations and strong standards of behaviour. We will work with all partners, parents/
carers and schools so that Sefton’s children and young people are educated in the 
setting or school which is right for them and which best meets their needs. There will 
be a broad and balanced curriculum equipping them with the life skills they need to 
be independent and successful as an adult. Pathways will prepare young people for 
education, employment and training. The focus will be on ensuring our children leave 
school with the right skills and opportunities to achieve which  will also value the 
contribution of sport, cultural, social and health education, how to deal with bullying 
and strategies to promote their health and well being. Learning does not stop once a 
young person leaves school and we want them to have the desire and opportunities to 
keep on learning and developing.

Key to success is collaboration with school leaders, providers and stakeholders to 
ensure that the education system in Sefton provides an inclusive education that 
delivers excellent outcomes, meets the needs of all children, young people, raises their 
aspirations and prepares them for the next stage in their education and lives. We will 
support collaborative hubs for training, transition between schools, and sharing best 
practice through the Virtual School, Inclusion team, and multi-agency forums so that 
our children benefit from teachers and practitioners who work together to support each 
other and share knowledge and expertise.

We recognise the impact poor attendance/regular absence has on children’s’ safety, 
attainment and behaviour. A key priority in Sefton is to ensure that all pupils attend 
school regularly. We will work with colleagues in schools and Children’s Social Care to 
ensure families are supported where their circumstances create a barrier to attendance.

We will:
 ■ Collaborate with partners and early years providers to promote school 

readiness

 ■ Support all early years settings to develop a broad ambitious curriculum 
underpinned by strong foundations to secure the basics of literacy and 
numeracy. 

 ■ Practitioners will ensure the voice of the child is heard to identify their 
interests, motivators and characteristics of effective learning and use this to 
good effect in promoting or accelerating progress

 ■ Monitor the attendance and outcomes of our most vulnerable children in 
order to plan and implement strategies to address their particular needs 
and improve outcomes

 ■ Through our robust system of challenge and support ensure that every 
school has a well designed and sequenced curriculum which builds 
knowledge in a broad range of subjects.

 ■ Will recognise the importance of schools in the collaborative process to 
work with key partners e.g. regional hubs to provide guidance and training 
on the quality of provision of reading and mathematics

 ■ Work with Department for Education and schools to address poor 
attendance and identify specific areas in need of improvement

 ■ Collaborate with schools and behaviour hubs to strengthen and outline 
approaches to behaviour, interventions and services, to support  early 
years’ settings and schools  to ensure the needs of all children and young 
people are identified early, understood and effectively addressed in order 
to support good attendance and prevent the use of exclusion wherever 
possible.

 ■ Develop an Inclusion Strategy that sets out the approaches and support 
available to, and standards expected of, mainstream settings in supporting 
their pupils’ learning needs.

 ■ A senior mental health leader in every school by 2025

 ■ Support inclusive and innovative practice that promotes the wellbeing and 
emotional health of our children and young people

 ■ Support young people so they are aware of the variety post-16 pathways 
which help address local skills needs and prepare them for the next stage in 
their education and adult life.

P
age 55

A
genda Item

 7



Education Excellence Strategy for Sefton 2022 - 2027

PAGE 14

 ■ Partner with setting, schools a, colleges and providers to provide effective 
transitions at all stages

 ■ Further develop our borough-wide partnership approach across all phases of 
education to provide young people with access to clear pathways that link 
education to the world of work in a way that is relevant to the local labour 
market including regeneration and investment programmes

 ■ Develop local processes in line with the proposed national standards for SEN 
in relation to transition to ensure consistent, timely, high -quality transition 
preparation for children and young people with SEND.

 ■ Continue to develop the supported internships and traineeships 
programmes to provide more young people with SEND with the skills  they 
need to secure and sustain paid employment.

 ■ Develop opportunities to consider the impact of sustainability through 
climate education, green skills and career opportunities

 ■ Collaborate with schools and behaviour hubs to strengthen and outline 
approaches to behaviour, interventions and services, to support  early 
years’ settings and schools  to ensure the needs of all children and young 
people are identified early, understood and effectively addressed in order 
to support good attendance and prevent the use of exclusion wherever 
possible.

P
age 56

A
genda Item

 7



Education Excellence Strategy for Sefton 2022 - 2027

PAGE 15

Priority 3. All Children and young people achieve their 
full potential people (Targeted support for every child 
who needs it)
A great start will shape children’s lifelong health and wellbeing.  In collaboration with 
key partners including health and social care we will ensure all children have good 
social and emotional support.  Together we will support and sustain improved all 
round outcomes for every child including the disadvantaged which narrows the gap.

We want all children to have the best life chances, including those with SEND and 
those from disadvantaged backgrounds.  We will enhance joint commissioning of 
support between education, health and care services for children with SEND to ensure 
services work together effectively. Attendance and progress of our Children in Need 
will be monitored so that we can best understand their needs and plan effective 
measures of support We will ensure all children will have access to an educational 
setting that is appropriate to their needs.

Every child in Sefton who falls behind in English or maths will get the right support to 
get back on track.

We will:
 ■ Challenge aspirations and ambitions for all children and young people 

dispelling misconceptions by supporting children and young people to 
achieve their goals

 ■ Listen to children’s and their families’ voices to get the right support and 
help at the right time

 ■ From the earliest point in a child’s life provide families with timely access 
to support so their experience improves and the needs of their children are 
identified early and effectively met

 ■ Collectively act as champions for vulnerable children when we recognise 
that they are not being served

 ■ Incorporate the views of children and young people with SEND, children 
looked after and children with a social worker in order to minimise barriers 
to learning and ensure the holistic development of children and young 
people

 ■ Through training and development, we will maximise the effectiveness  
of quality first teaching and assessment to promote swift identification  
of need and target appropriate, evidence based intervention

 ■ Direct schools to the Department for Education recommendations around 
the effective use of pupil premium funding to improve the outcomes of 
disadvantaged children

 ■ Collaborate with settings and schools to ensure quality transition for 
all pupils at each key stage with the opportunities for personalised 
programmes where needed

 ■ Ensure schools are fully aware of their responsibilities to keep all parents/
carers informed of their child’s progress when they are falling behind and 
what is being done to address this 

 ■ In partnership with schools and children’s services be aspirational for the 
outcomes for children looked after

 ■ Implement the National Standards for SEND that the government reforms 
will introduce to ensure consistency of how needs are identified and met 
at every stage of a child’s journey across education, health and care.

 ■ Implement planned new requirements to create and distribute an 
alternative provision-specific budget to give alternative provision schools 
the funding stability to deliver a service focused on early intervention, and 
work with those provisions to adhere to the performance framework which 
will be in place.

 ■ Develop a local Inclusion Plan in line with Green Paper recommendations

 ■ Provide children and their families with the right support at the right time

P
age 57

A
genda Item

 7



Education Excellence Strategy for Sefton 2022 - 2027

PAGE 16

Priority 4. School Systems to Support Children and 
their Families (A stronger and fairer school system)
We wish to ensure our Sefton family of schools are fully prepared for this transition.  
We aim to achieve this through the actions laid out in priorities 1, 2 and 3.  Sefton 
wishes to work in partnership creating an optimum environment for schools to realise 
their potential and succeed in these areas on their journey to become a member of a 
strong trust.

Sefton will utilise the opportunities given as part of the Opportunity Areas programme 
This will support the adoption of the family valued approach enhancing a joined-up 
approach with all key partners to secure the best outcomes for children..

All  children in Sefton will benefit from high quality and inclusive education, school 
improvement, strategic governance, financial management and workforce. 

We will:
 ■ Ensure sufficiency of places for ALL children

 ■ For pupils with EHC Plans, in line with planned SEND Green Paper reforms, 
where a pupils requires placement in specialist provision, the local 
Inclusion Plan will set out the provision available within the local area, in 
order to provide families with a tailored list of schools that are appropriate 
to meet their needs.

 ■ Continue and further develop a collaborative system of working with MATs

 ■ Design and deliver a revised strategic school improvement system which 
reflects a collaborative and system led approach

 ■ Continue to support and challenge Schools Causing Concern and grow 
capacity to deliver effective support and challenge around quality school 
improvement

 ■ Use data and local intelligence effectively to identify key strengths and 
areas for development to enable us to address inconsistencies, share best 
practice and drive up standards

 ■ Further enhance the partnership working with School Improvement Groups 
building on the successful projects undertaken by them

 ■ Continue to grow and develop the partnership work with the Research 
School to provide evidence based support

 ■ Work in collaboration with schools and academies to provide places for all 
children in good or better settings and schools

 ■ Engage with the planned new national and local SEND data dashboards to 
ensure that the right information is collected in the right way at the right 
time to enable timely responses to local needs.

 ■ Implement planned changes to the SEND national funding system to 
ensure the most effective use of high needs funding to support schools.

P
age 58

A
genda Item

 7



Education Excellence Strategy for Sefton 2022 - 2027

PAGE 17

How will we make this happen?
Governance:
Strong governance is essential to success and Education Excellence is answerable to 
several boards including SEND Continuous Improvement Board; Emotional Health & 
Wellbeing Board; School Improvement Board as well as the Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee of the Council.

Each of the priorities is underpinned by action plans linked to the four key themes 
of Heard, Happy, Healthy, Achieving and reviewed each year. Progress against the 
priorities will be reviewed and monitored regularly to ensure that our approach is 
responsive to emerging needs, challenges and opportunities.

Good governance and accountability is a two-way relationship and where Sefton 
has concerns regarding the provision in schools, the process as set out in Sefton’s 
Arrangements for Monitoring and Intervention of School Performance will be invoked.

P
age 59

A
genda Item

 7



Education Excellence Strategy for Sefton 2022 - 2027

PAGE 18

Partnership:
If we are to succeed in our ambitions, then we need to build on the excellent 
relationships established over the last year. We will work with all partners, parents/
carers and schools so that Sefton’s children and young people are educated in the 
school which is right for them and which best meets their needs. It is essential for all 
partners to work together to help Sefton achieve the vision that, ‘all children and young 
people receive an education in Sefton which enables them to reach their individual 
potential, have a clear pathway to further education, employment and engage 
positively with others in their community.’  

Effective collaboration and partnership with Teaching Hubs, Multi Academy Trusts 
(MATs), standalone academies and all other schools will support raising pupil outcomes. 

Partners have a key role in enabling children and young people to be the best they 
can be.  Partnership working with secondary schools, colleges, providers and local 
businesses will have crucial roles in ensuring that our young people are able to develop 
the skills and attributes through aspirational courses that enable them to be successful 
in the workplace.

Alongside our academic ambitions is the need to work with Public Health, the Clinical 
Commissioning Group and other health partners to prioritise the mental health and 
wellbeing of all children and young people particularly as we recover from the Covid 
pandemic.

P
age 60

A
genda Item

 7



Education Excellence Strategy for Sefton 2022 - 2027

PAGE 19

Delivering Our Priorities:
If we are to succeed in our ambitions, then we need to build on the excellent 
relationships established over the last year. We will work with all partners, parents/
carers and schools so that Sefton’s children and young people are educated in the 
school which is right for them and which best meets their needs. It is essential for all 
partners to work together to help Sefton achieve the vision that, ‘all children and young 
people receive an education in Sefton which enables them to reach their individual 
potential, have a clear pathway to further education, employment and engage 
positively with others in their community.’  Effective collaboration and partnership 
with Teaching Hubs, Multi Academy Trusts (MATs), standalone academies and all other 
schools will support raising pupil outcomes. Partners have a key role in enabling children 

and young people to be the best they can be.  Partnership working with secondary 
schools, colleges, providers and local businesses will have crucial roles in ensuring that 
our young people are able to develop the skills and attributes through aspirational 
courses that enable them to be successful in the workplace.

Alongside our academic ambitions is the need to work with Public Health, the Clinical 
Commissioning Group and other health partners to prioritise the mental health and 
wellbeing of all children and young people particularly as we recover from the Covid 
pandemic.

 Priority 1. Excellent teachers supported by excellent staff

How we will make this happen LA SIG School

Implement the New Early Years Foundation Stage Framework in schools and private, 
voluntary and independent settings Early Years Service

Develop partnership between Private, voluntary and independent Nurseries/Schools and 
Family Wellbeing Centres to support early identification and appropriate support.

Educational Psychology Service
Early Years Service

Embed the Early Years ‘First Response’ function for vulnerable children Early Years Service

Joint working with colleagues in Health and Early Help 
Educational Psychology 

Inclusion Service
Send Service Service
Early Years Service

Ensure that young children are supported by key adults in order to enjoy good physical, 
mental and emotional wellbeing

Educational Psychology Service
Virtual School

Early Years Service

Enhance existing pathways across agencies working with children ensuring their 
development is promoted consistently, and risks of delay are identified and addressed 
early.

Educational Psychology Service
Virtual School

Inclusion Service
Send Service

Early Years Service

Work with all early years’ providers to support speech and language programmes Early Years Service wwwwwwww

P
age 61

A
genda Item

 7



Education Excellence Strategy for Sefton 2022 - 2027

PAGE 20

 Priority 2. Raise achievement and ensure young people have the life skills to prepare for adulthood

How we will make this happen LA SIG School

Provide an Agreed Religious Education Syllabus for all non-maintained Primary and 
Secondary Schools that allows pupils to share their religious views and consider life values Sefton SACRE

All primary schools implement the new statutory Relationships Education policy and all 
secondary schools implement the Relationship and Sex Education policies 

Continue implementing the rigorous schools causing concern protocol challenging 
schools to diminish the achievement gap by focusing on the attainment of more able 
and disadvantaged pupils

Educational Psychology Service
Inclusion Service

Early Years Service
School Improvement

Embed working in close collaboration across services within Educational Excellence    
and other partners to support and challenge schools

Educational Psychology Service
Virtual School

Inclusion Service
Send Service

Early Years Service
School Improvement

Work with the new super teaching hubs to facilitate appropriate and identified 
Continuing Professional Development for staff across all schools School Improvement

Work in partnership with the DfE to deliver the programme of support and challenge for 
Bootle Constituency schools and other identified schools School Improvement

Develop the Narrowing the Gap Self Improving Schools Programme Programme across 
all secondary schools

Embed the partnership work to ensure that all pupils are able to access the right 
course post 16 and have access to effective career guidance that matches builds their 
aspirations

Virtual School
School Improvement

Embed and develop further support for Emotional Health and Wellbeing in all schools
Educational Psychology Service

Inclusion Service
Early Years Service

Challenge schools to reduce absence so that pupils are accessing their learning

Educational Psychology Service
Virtual School

Inclusion Service
Send Service

Early Years Service

Develop the provision within the Virtual School for Looked After Children and across 
partnerships for Children in Need and Children on a Child protection Plan to enable them 
to make progress.

P
age 62

A
genda Item

 7



Education Excellence Strategy for Sefton 2022 - 2027

PAGE 21

 Priority 3. All Children and young people achieve their full potential people

How we will make this happen LA SIG School

Incorporate the views of children and young people through the Education, Health 
and Care Plan process and throughout their school life in order to minimise barriers to 
learning and ensure their holistic development 

Educational Psychology Service
Inclusion Service

Send Service
Early Years Service

Embed the graduated approach therefore reducing the need for children and young 
people to attend Resource Bases or Special Schools

Educational Psychology Service
Virtual School

Inclusion Service
Early Years Service

Use specialist assessments alongside school data to build a holistic profile of the child’s 
needs and progress.

Educational Psychology Service
Virtual School

Inclusion Service         
Send Service

Early Years Service

All children and young people with Education, Health and Care Plans receive the 
appropriate support and placement to enable them to thrive and make the appropriate 
progress they are capable of making.

Educational Psychology Service
Inclusion Service

Send Service
Early Years Service

Continue to review the specialist provision across Sefton ensuring that all children and 
young people identified with SEND have access to quality provision within Sefton

Educational Psychology Service
Inclusion Service

Send Service
Early Years Service

In partnership develop a FAQ document to address key queries regularly raised relating 
to the 4 Planning for Adulthood themes – Community, Health, Independent Living and 
Education/Employment.

Virtual School
Send Service

Embed the NEET Case Conferencing Group to identify creative and innovative solutions 
to address the barriers facing individual young people. Virtual School

In conjunction with local FE Colleges, we will develop and expand the Supported 
Internship programme to increase the opportunities for young people with SEN to 
access paid employment

Send Service

P
age 63

A
genda Item

 7



Education Excellence Strategy for Sefton 2022 - 2027

PAGE 22

 Priority 4. School Systems to Support Children and their Families

How we will make this happen LA SIG School

Ensure sufficiency of places for ALL children
Inclusion Service

Send Service
Early Years Service

For pupils with EHC Plans, in line with planned SEND Green Paper reforms, where a 
pupils requires placement in specialist provision, the local Inclusion Plan will set out the 
provision available within the local area, in order to provide families with a tailored list of 
schools that are appropriate to meet their needs.

Inclusion Service
Send Service

Continue and further develop a collaborative system of working with MATs

Inclusion Service
Send Service

Early Years Service
School Improvement

Design and deliver a revised strategic school improvement system which reflects a 
collaborative and system led approach

Inclusion Service
Send Service

Early Years Service
School Improvement

P
age 64

A
genda Item

 7



P
age 65

A
genda Item

 7



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

 
 

Report to: Overview and 
Scrutiny 

Committee 
(Children’s 

Services and 
Safeguarding) 
 

Date of Meeting: 
 

27 September 
2022 

Subject: Ofsted Inspection Reports 
 

Report of: Executive Director 
of Children’s Social 

Care and 
Education 

 

Wards Affected: (All Wards) 

Cabinet Portfolio: Education 
 

Is this a Key 

Decision: 
No Included in 

Forward Plan: 
No 

Exempt / 
Confidential 
Report: 

No  

 

Summary: 
 

To update the Overview and Scrutiny Committee (Children’s Services and 
Safeguarding) on Ofsted Inspection Reports and the work of the School 
Improvement Team. 
 
Recommendation(s): 

 
That the report be noted. 
 
Reasons for the Recommendation(s): 

 

To appraise the Committee of developments. 
 
Alternative Options Considered and Rejected: (including any Risk Implications) 

 
Not applicable. 

 
What will it cost and how will it be financed? 

 
(A) Revenue Costs 

 

Not applicable. 
 
(B) Capital Costs 

 

Not applicable. 

Page 67

Agenda Item 8



 

 
 
 

Implications of the Proposals: 

 
Resource Implications (Financial, IT, Staffing and Assets):  None directly. 

 

Legal Implications:  

School Inspection Handbook, Education Act 2005 
 

Equality Implications: 

There are no equality implications.  
Climate Emergency Implications: 
 

The recommendations within this report will  

Have a positive impact  No 

Have a neutral impact Yes 

Have a negative impact No 

The Author has undertaken the Climate Emergency training for 

report authors 

Yes 

 
There are no climate emergency implications as a direct result of this report. 
 

 

Contribution to the Council’s Core Purpose:  

 

 

Protect the most vulnerable: Not applicable. 
 

Facilitate confident and resilient communities: The School Improvement Team 

offers support to all schools receiving an Ofsted inspection. 
 

Commission, broker and provide core services: As above. 
 

Place – leadership and influencer: As above. 

 

Drivers of change and reform: As above. 
 

Facilitate sustainable economic prosperity: Not applicable. 

 

Greater income for social investment: Not applicable. 
 

Cleaner Greener: Not applicable. 

 
 
What consultations have taken place on the proposals and when? 

 
(A) Internal Consultations 

 

Page 68

Agenda Item 8



 

 
 

The Executive Director of Corporate Resources and Customer Services (FD 

6908/22) and the Chief Legal and Democratic Officer (LD 5158/22) have been 
consulted and any comments have been incorporated into the report. 

 
(B) External Consultations  
 

Not applicable. 
 
Implementation Date for the Decision 

 
Immediately following the Committee meeting. 

 
 

 
Contact Officer: Tricia Davies/Jacqui Patterson 

Telephone Number:  

Email Address: Tricia Davies@sefton.gov.uk 
 
Appendices: 

 
The following appendices are attached to this report:  
 

 Ofsted Summary of Outcomes and Support Summer 2022 – Published results 

for the schools outlined 

 
Background Papers: 
 

There are no background papers available for inspection. 
 
1. Introduction/Background 

 
1.1 Ofsted inspections have fully resumed. 

1.2 Schools can be inspected under Section 5 or Section 8 guidance. 

1.3 Under the education inspection framework section 5 inspections, inspectors 

will make the following judgements about schools: overall effectiveness; 

quality of education; behaviour and attitudes; personal development and 

leadership and management. If the school offers early years provision and 

sixth-form provision, inspectors will also make judgements on these areas. 

1.4 Under the education inspection framework section 8 inspections may be 

carried out for a range of reasons: schools judged to be good or outstanding 

at their most recent section 5 inspection; monitoring inspections of schools 

judged as requires improvement; monitoring inspections of schools judged to 

have serious weaknesses; monitoring inspections of schools judged to require 

special measures; any inspection that is carried out in other circumstances 

Page 69

Agenda Item 8



 

 
 

where the inspection has no specific designation, known as ‘section 8 no 

formal designation inspection’ and unannounced behaviour inspections.  

 
1.5 The usual interval for section 5 inspections is within 5 school years from the 

end of the school year in which the last section 5 or relevant section 8 

inspection took place. 

 

2. Support from School Improvement Team: 
 

2.1  All schools currently judged Requires Improvement or Inadequate receive 
support and challenge from the School Improvement Team. In addition, the 
team also broker support. Schools with two RI judgements or judged 

inadequate receive support from the DFE including a National Leader of 
Education working with the school and the Local Authority on a school 

improvement programme. 
 
2.2  All schools currently judged Good or Outstanding have access to a 

health check when in the Ofsted window. This enables the school to identify 
any areas that they need support with. The team will then provide or broker 

support if required. 
 

2.3  Once the school receives the call a member of the team will contact them to 

check if any support is required and keep in contact throughout the inspection. 
 

2.4  The Service Manager for School Improvement or the Head of Education 
Excellence meet with the lead inspector during the inspection and attend the 
final feedback. 

 
2.5  Following the inspection report being released the team will again provide or 

broker support as appropriate. 
 
2.6      The Local Authority are held to account by the DFE and the Senior HMI for 

school     performance. The main focus of discussions is regarding all schools 
judged as Requiring Improvement or Inadequate, the capacity to improve and 

the impact of support provided. 
 
3. Inspections – Spring/Summer term 2022 

 

3.1   The following schools outlined within the attached appendix have been 
inspected and       reports received since the last meeting: 

 
1. Holy Trinity Primary School 

2. Maricourt High School 
3. St Johns Crossens Primary School 
4. St Philips Primary School  

5. Birkdale High School

Page 70

Agenda Item 8



 

 
 

OFSTED Summary of Outcomes and Support Summer 2022 (Pt 1 ) 

 

Name of 
School 

Inspection 
Date 

Lead 
Inspector’s 

Name 

Latest OFSTED 
Grade 

Previous 
Inspection 

Date and 
OFSTED 

Grade 

Development 
Areas 

LA Relationship and 
Support 

Holy 
Trinity 

04/05/2022 
& 
05/05/2022 

Jackie 
Stillings 

Good 
50187551 
(ofsted.gov.uk) 

22/05/2014 - 
Good 

 RWInc further 

develop 

phonics 

School now academy. LA not 
involved in inspection process 

Maricourt 04/05/2022 
05/05/2022 

David 
Hampson 

Good 
50186889 
(ofsted.gov.uk) 

27/11/2018 – 
Requires 
Improvement 

 Consistent use 
of assessment 

 Consistent 
implementation 
of behaviour 
policies 

Full engagement with LA 
Secondary research project. 
Engagement with Attendance 

St Johns 
Crossens 

11/05/2022 Jackie 
Stillings 

Good 
50187784 
(ofsted.gov.uk) 

25/04/2016 - 
Good 

 Teaching 
Assistant and 
support staff 
training to 
ensure 
consistency in 
phonics, maths 
and other 
curriculum 
areas for 
support groups 

 Curriculum 
development 

School on SCC protocol-full 
engagement and support with 
Service Manager and support 
brokered through Teach First. 
Will now be removed from 
SCC protocol 
Positive relationship with 
school-LA involvement in staff 
appointments 

 

 
 

 
 

P
age 71

A
genda Item

 8

https://files.ofsted.gov.uk/v1/file/50187551
https://files.ofsted.gov.uk/v1/file/50187551
https://files.ofsted.gov.uk/v1/file/50186889
https://files.ofsted.gov.uk/v1/file/50186889
https://files.ofsted.gov.uk/v1/file/50187784
https://files.ofsted.gov.uk/v1/file/50187784


 

 
 

St Philip’s 
Litherland 

05/07/2022 Stuart 
Perkins 

Pending 28/06/2016 
Good 

 Attendance 

 Curriculum 
development-
music 

 Support accessed 

from school 

improvement for early 

years, teaching and 

learning, health checks 

 Positive relationship 

and good 

communication with 

LA 

Birkdale 
High 

School 

15/06/2022 Timothy 
Gartside 

Good 
10240373-Birkdale-

High-School-final-
PDF.pdf 

(birkdalehigh.co.uk) 

18/10/2017 
Good 

 Rich curriculum 
offer 

 Strong subject 
knowledge  

 Range of careers 
education 

 Pupils including 
disadvantaged 
progress well 

 Minority of KS3 

subjects need to be 

designed to enable 

pupils to gain rich 

knowledge  

 

 

 
 
 
 

 

P
age 72

A
genda Item

 8

https://www.birkdalehigh.co.uk/wp-content/uploads/2022/09/10240373-Birkdale-High-School-final-PDF.pdf
https://www.birkdalehigh.co.uk/wp-content/uploads/2022/09/10240373-Birkdale-High-School-final-PDF.pdf
https://www.birkdalehigh.co.uk/wp-content/uploads/2022/09/10240373-Birkdale-High-School-final-PDF.pdf
https://www.birkdalehigh.co.uk/wp-content/uploads/2022/09/10240373-Birkdale-High-School-final-PDF.pdf


1 
 

 
Report to: Overview and 

Scrutiny 

Committee 
 

(Children’s 
Services and 
Safeguarding) 

 

Date of Meeting: 27 September 
2022 

 

Subject: Cabinet Member Reports – July - September 2022 
 

Report of: Chief Legal and 

Democratic Officer 
 

Wards Affected: All 

Cabinet Portfolio: Children’s Social Care 

Education 
 

Is this a Key 

Decision: 
No Included in 

Forward Plan: 
No 

Exempt / 
Confidential 
Report: 

No 

 
Summary: 

 

To submit the Cabinet Member – Children’s Social Care and the Cabinet Member - 
Education reports relating to the remit of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee. 
 

Recommendation: 

 

That the Cabinet Member – Children’s Social Care and the Cabinet Member - 
Education reports relating to the remit of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee be 
noted. 

 
Reasons for the Recommendation: 

 
In order to keep Overview and Scrutiny Members informed, the Overview and 
Scrutiny Management Board has agreed for relevant Cabinet Member Reports to 

be submitted to appropriate Overview and Scrutiny Committees. 
 
Alternative Options Considered and Rejected:  

 
No alternative options have been considered because the Overview and Scrutiny 

Management Board has agreed for relevant Cabinet Member Reports to be 
submitted to appropriate Overview and Scrutiny Committees. 

 
What will it cost and how will it be financed? 

 

Any financial implications associated with the Cabinet Member reports which are 
referred to in this update are contained within the respective reports. 

Page 73

Agenda Item 9



2 
 

 
(A) Revenue Costs – see above 

 
(B) Capital Costs – see above 

 
Implications of the Proposals: 

 
Resource Implications (Financial, IT, Staffing and Assets): None 

 

Legal Implications: None 
 

Equality Implications: There are no equality implications.  

Climate Emergency Implications: 

 

The recommendations within this report will  

Have a positive impact  No 

Have a neutral impact Yes 

Have a negative impact No 

The Author has undertaken the Climate Emergency training for 
report authors 

Yes 

 
There are no direct climate emergency implications arising from this report. Any 

climate emergency implications arising from the consideration of reports referred to 
in the Work Programme will be contained in such reports when they are presented 

to Members at the appropriate time. 
 

 
Contribution to the Council’s Core Purpose:  

 

Protect the most vulnerable: None directly applicable to this report. The Cabinet 
Member updates provides information on activity within Councillor Doyle’s and 

Councillor Roscoe’s portfolios during the previous three-month period. Any reports 
relevant to their portfolios considered by the Cabinet, Cabinet Member or 
Committees during this period would contain information as to how such reports 

contributed to the Council’s Core Purpose. 
 

Facilitate confident and resilient communities: As above 

 

Commission, broker and provide core services: As above 
 

Place – leadership and influencer: As above 

 

Drivers of change and reform: As above 
 

Facilitate sustainable economic prosperity: As above 

 

Greater income for social investment: As above 
 

Cleaner Greener: As above 

Page 74

Agenda Item 9



3 
 

 

 
What consultations have taken place on the proposals and when? 

 
(A) Internal Consultations 

 

The Cabinet Member Update Reports are not subject to FD/LD consultation.  Any 
specific financial and legal implications associated with any subsequent reports 

arising from the attached Cabinet Member update reports will be included in those 
reports as appropriate 
 
(B) External Consultations  

 

Not applicable  
 
Implementation Date for the Decision 

 
Immediately following the Committee meeting. 

 
Contact Officer: Debbie Campbell 

Telephone Number: 0151 934 2254 

Email Address: debbie.campbell@sefton.gov.uk  
 
Appendices: 

 
The following appendices are attached to this report: 
 

Appendix A - Cabinet Member – Children’s Social Care - update report 
Appendix B - Cabinet Member – Education – update report 

 
Background Papers: 
 

There are no background papers available for inspection. 
 
1. Introduction/Background 

 
1.1 In order to keep Overview and Scrutiny Members informed, the Overview and 

Scrutiny Management Board has agreed for relevant Cabinet Member 
Reports to be submitted to appropriate Overview and Scrutiny Committees. 

 
1.2 Attached to this report, for information, are the most recent Cabinet Member 

reports for the Children’s Social Care and Education portfolios. 

 

Page 75

Agenda Item 9

mailto:debbie.campbell@sefton.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX A 

 

CABINET MEMBER REPORT 

Overview & Scrutiny Committee  

(Children’s Services and Safeguarding)  

 

Councillor Portfolio Date 

Mhairi Doyle Cabinet Member 
Children’s Social Care 

27 September 2022 

 

Children’s Social Care 

 All staff within Children's Services (including Education) are in the process of moving into one 
building (Magdalene house), which will provide a greater line of sight and support to staff within 
the service.  

 The Assistant Director for Early Help and Protection is currently being advertised.   

 Recruitment across the Service Manager roles is ongoing. One Service manager has recently 
come into post with another 4 due to start by the end of October. This will result in 8 permanent 
Service Managers in post. There is currently an advert out for the remaining 3 Service Manager 
posts that have not yet been recruited to.   

 A diagnostic by Sunderland 'Together for Children' was completed on Liquid Logic. The report and 
associated recommendations has been provided.  

 The Children's Services improvement plan has been completed and submitted to Ofsted. Briefings 
on the improvement plan have been undertaken to IPC, Overview and Scrutiny and there are 
planned staff events w/c 29th September. Service plans across all parts of the service been 
devised with the support of strategic support. 

 Currently receiving support and training through an experienced Department of Education (DfE) 
consultant, on our support and offer to care experienced children and those who are transitioning 
into adulthood. Training has been delivered to staff and is due to be provided to partner agencies 
in the coming months.  

 Refreshed performance reports have been launched to aid and assist practitioners and managers. 

 The launch of the Caring business charter took place on the 21st July. 

 Relaunch of the care experienced DWP protocol is due to take place in September. Which 
provided greater support and clarity for cared for children applying for benefits.  

 Refresh and launch of the quality assurance framework. 

 Ongoing recruitment is taking place for the Social Work Academy, with a planned launch date of 
October 2022. 

 Working with a company on international recruitment of Social Workers is ongoing. We hope to 
achieve 20 experienced qualified Social Workers to come into post from Africa at the beginning of 
2023. 

 We will be launching two new services in late September and early October. The “Family Time 
Team” will be focussed on ensuring supportive, fun and safe contact between children and their 
parents whilst they are in care proceedings on in alternative care settings. This team will bring 
evidence based approaches to an essential aspect of ensuring a child’s identity.  

 

 Page 77

Agenda Item 9



APPENDIX A 

 The Targeted Family Support Team will be offering a focussed and intense programme of support 
for those families who require help outside of the statutory framework. Based on ideas from Multi-
systemic practice the programme seeks to help families achieve goals whilst also giving them life 
experience to tackle problems.  

 

 Work continues to be underway with the new approach to working with children affected by Extra 
Familial Harm. The new “S.P.A.C.E. service (named by our young people) is a multi-agency 
approach to reducing risk in both the present and future terms.  

 

Youth Justice Service 

Performance  

 YJS performance remain positive. There has been a reduction in reoffending which has continued 
to reduce over the last 4 years. This is reflected nationally too. More children are dealt with 
through out of court disposals which has reduced the number of first time entrants into the judicial 
system and there was a small reduction in out of court disposals during 2021 compared to 2020. 

 

 Sefton’s custody rates have remained at zero for a prolonged period, however one child not 
already known to YJS, is currently on remand for the murder of an adult male and another child 
has been remanded with Possession of Class A Drugs with Intent to Supply. YJS has a duty to 
assess, support and visit both children who is detained within the secure estate.  

 

Critical Learning Reviews 

 Two reviews have recently been undertaken which relate to attempt suicide incidents involving 
children, one of whom was open to the YJS at the time and another who had been and was 
expected to come back to the service because of impending matters. The approach of Sefton YJS 
is to hold reviews in order to establish good practice and learning points even if there is no 
statutory responsibility to do so. 

 

Some of the key learning points across the two cases are: 

1. There is clear evidence of joint working between YJS and CSC which is not always as strong 
as it needs to be in the context of information sharing. This is likely to be resolved as the YJS 
moves into Children’s Services (sept 22) 

2. There were plans to change one girl’s cared for arrangements which had a detrimental impact 
on her leading to adverse reactions and emotional stress  

3. There are some ‘system’ issues to unpick around the CAMHS support and how accessible the 
appointments were for the child 

4. Education issues existed for both children relating to a long history of poor or non-attendance 
at school  

5. There are some issues around the number of professionals that work with children and 
whether some issues were addressed too late with too many professionals intervening 

6. It was highlighted that there should be a formal process to notify partners and share 
information when an incident of attempt suicide / serious self-harm takes place. 

 

 These issues have been shared with partners. In addition, YJS have developed a draft process to 
disseminate information following an attempt suicide incident which will be agreed by partners at 
the YJS Partnership in October 22. 

 

 

 
Page 78

Agenda Item 9



APPENDIX A 

Female Cohort Mapping 

 Following a number of attempt suicides and other significant incidents involving young females in 
or associated to the YJS cohort, an audit was undertaken of girls accessing the YJS within Quarter 
1 2022. This sample comprised sixteen girls and the headlines are as follows.  

 

There were some concerning facts which are as follows: 
 

 15 girls were identified as being at risk of child exploitation 

  75% were on a MACE plan and 3 were known to associate with gangs.  

 50% had EHCP plans, and school attendance was identified as an issue. 

 5 girls were diagnosed with ADHD and 3 girls with ASD. 
 5 girls had attempted suicide and 3 of those girls had links to a young person who sadly died 

last year following a suicide attempt 

 For the majority there were concerns about early sexual experiences 

 11 had difficulties with the mental health 

 There was prevalent drug and alcohol use 

 4 girls had disclosed sexual abuse  

 12 girls had experienced domestic abuse in the home 
 8 girls were identified as having parents with substance misuse difficulties 

 5 girls had experienced neglect from a young age 

 There was a clear link between the young people either living within the north locality or 
spending significant periods of time in the Southport area. 

 All of the girls within the cohort were known to Children Social Care with current interventions. 

 Although the police and other agency systems did not suggest a link between all the young 
girls with attempt suicide or self-harm episodes, the board felt as though more were probably 
associated or knew each other than our systems suggested, such as through social media. 
There is a concern around the North Sefton area due to the number of such episodes that 
have happened both before and after the death of a 12 year old girl in June 2021, although it 
could be misleading to suggest that there is a spate of associated attempt suicide episodes.  

 Partners agreed that there is a requirement for more robust early intervention and prevention 
services as many of the children had been known to multiple services for a significant length of 
time. In addition, some children were experiencing ‘too much too late’ with many agencies 
involved with the child and family without making any notable impact. 

 

Violent Crime 

 The YJS have reviewed violence offences due to the prevalence of this offence type. The police 
are seeing more “peer on peer” violence, often stemming from online or school bullying. The YJS 
cohort analysis substantiated this with less offences linked to child on parent violence. The 
vulnerabilities and risks of the cohort are significant factors, child exploitation, the number of times 
they are missing, and adverse life experiences was a common feature for the majority of young 
people. There are further discussions taking place with the Integrated Care Framework Vanguard 
to develop opportunities to tackle violence and child mental health through a bid to the Violence 
Reduction Partnership. 

 

 

Page 79

Agenda Item 9



This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX B 
 

 

CABINET MEMBER UPDATE 
Overview and Scrutiny (Children’s Services and Safeguarding) 

 

Councillor Portfolio Period of Report 

Diane Roscoe 
 

Education 
 

August 2022 

 
Education Excellence 
 

Recruitment to vacant posts within Education Excellence continues. There is difficulty in 

recruiting SEND case officers which has an impact on the production of Education, Health, 
Care Plans (EHCPs). 

We continue to develop our strategies in working with, supporting and challenging schools. 

This year will see the introduction o a programme across primary schools based on the 

successful secondary programme. The professional Partners Programme has been 

successful and will be expanded this year. We are building on the work started with the School 

Improvement Groups to further develop the partnership work to support and challenge 
schools. 

Schools  

This half term we have had the final reports for three schools. Maricourt High was rated good 

overall an improvement from the last inspection when they were requires improvement. 

Waterloo Primary remained good and Our Lady of Walsingham was rated requires 

improvement. The school improvement team continue to support, challenge and broker 
additional support for schools. 

This term we will continue to offer health checks in a range of areas including early years; 

school improvement and curriculum; SEND and leadership and management to all schools 

rated good or outstanding due for an inspection. Schools have found this beneficial and 

enabled them to target areas for development which has resulted in a positive impact in 
inspection results.  

St Teresa’s 

St Teresa’s school closed on 31st August 2022. We have negotiated a short term lease with 

Liverpool Archdiocese whilst surveys are carried out on the building pending a long term lease 

of 25 years. This will enable us to provide new and additional places for children in primary 

schools with a diagnosis of Social, Emotional, Mental Health (SEMH). In addition this will 

provide additional capacity for secondary pupils at Newfield as the younger children move to 
the St Teresa’s site.  

Sacred Heart 

The school moved to the St Francis Academy Trust on 1stuly 2022 

Savio 

Savio has been accepted onto the new build programme. As a result, due diligence on moving 

to Pope Francis Academy trust has resumed. The intended date for conversion is 1st January 
2023. 

Exams and Tests 

Provisional results have been published for all exams and tests at primary and secondary 

level. Whilst we have seen a rise in attainment at GCSE and A Level in comparison to 2019 
Page 81

Agenda Item 9



APPENDIX B 

we have seen a slight decline in KS1 and KS2 SATs. This is in line with a national picture at 
KS1 and KS2, there is no comparison available yet at GCSE and A Level. 

White Paper, ‘Opportunity for All’ 

One of the key components in the paper is for all schools to move to academy status by 2030. 

Schools, particularly community schools are concerned about the implications for them. A 

meeting was facilitated at Edge Hill College to outline the key objectives. Further support is 

planned for schools this term to enable them to consider the best options for them. Sefton 

currently has 10 small Multi Academy Trust (MATs), including two Archdiocesan and one 

Diocesan trusts operating within Sefton. 

School Rebuilding Programme 

Of the schools identified: Hudson; Lydiate; Netherton Moss; Woodlands; Meols Cop; The 

Grange; St Philips (Litherland); Marshside; Redgate and Summerhill. Lydiate has been 

identified as being part of the programme. The other schools continue to go through the 

process and as yet no further information has been given as to whether they are successful or 
not. 

Attendance 

On 6th May 2022, the DfE published new guidance on school attendance along with a 

summary table of responsibilities that will come into force from 1st September 2022.  

The guidance places expectations on:    

• All school and academy trust staff, headteachers, governors, academy 

trustees, and alternative provision providers    

• Local authority attendance staff, early help lead practitioners, social workers, 

and virtual school heads    

The guidance is intended to:  

• help schools, trusts, governing bodies and local authorities maintain high levels 

of school attendance  

• summarise the roles and responsibilities of parents, schools, trusts, governing 

bodies and local authorities  

• summarise the support that should be provided to families, including for pupils 

who are persistently or severely absent or at risk of becoming so  

• provide details of attendance legal interventions available to schools and local 

authorities where support does not work, is not engaged with or is not appropriate  

• provide details of what schools are required to record in the attendance and 

admission registers  

 

There will be significant change to the way attendance is addressed nationally and 

Sefton have been planning with the schools what the new attendance model will look 

like. Early help is the focus of the model.  We plan to provide regular updates as 

developments progress.  We will be publishing dates on new attendance network 

meetings and all schools have a named point of contact. 

SEND 

The new framework is currently in consultation and will be rolled out from January 

2023. The focus will be on experiences and outcomes for children and young people; 

how the Local Area Partnership works together to plan evaluate and develop SEND 

system; core criteria developed against which the Area Partnership will be evaluated. 

The judgements will be based on in depth discussions, case tracking, sampling and 

data.  
Page 82

Agenda Item 9



APPENDIX B 

https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachm

ent_data/file/926253/The_framework_for_the_inspection_of_local_areas_effectivenes

s_in_identifying_meeting_needs_children_who_have_SEND.pdf 

Newton Europe have been appointed to support us in the first stage of the DBV 

programme. They will be meeting with various people over the next few months so 

that a robust action plan can be implemented. 

In preparation for the inspection and undertaking the DBV programme then Heather 

Loveridge has joined the education team as Interim AD for Education Improvement 

with responsibility for supporting the SEND teams. Heather has already started 

benchmarking against the inspection and DBV criteria and will be developing an action 

plan to support further development. 

Additional capacity within Sefton is being developed through a range of projects 

across the LA. This includes additional ASD provision at Rowan High and Rowan 

Park; Moderate Learning Difficulties (MLD) at Crosby High and Complex Learning 

Difficulties (CLD) at Redgate. In addition we are developing extra capacity for KS1 and 

KS2 children with Social, Emotional and Mental Health (SEMH) in the St Teresa’s 

building as an annexe to Newfield. Other projects being considered are SEMH 

provision at The Grange; ASD provision at Freshfield; CLD provision at Formby High; 

profound and multiple learning difficulties (PMLD) at Rowan Park and ASD provision 

at Marshside. 

Page 83

Agenda Item 9

https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/926253/The_framework_for_the_inspection_of_local_areas_effectiveness_in_identifying_meeting_needs_children_who_have_SEND.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/926253/The_framework_for_the_inspection_of_local_areas_effectiveness_in_identifying_meeting_needs_children_who_have_SEND.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/926253/The_framework_for_the_inspection_of_local_areas_effectiveness_in_identifying_meeting_needs_children_who_have_SEND.pdf


This page is intentionally left blank



Report to: Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee 
(Children’s 

Services and 
Safeguarding) 
 

Date of Meeting: 27 September 
2022 
 

Subject: Work Programme 2022/23, Scrutiny Review Topics and Key 
Decision Forward Plan 
 

Report of: Chief Legal and 
Democratic Officer 
 

Wards Affected: All 

Cabinet Portfolio: Children’s Social Care 

Education 
 

Is this a Key 

Decision: 
No Included in 

Forward Plan: 
No 

Exempt / 
Confidential 

Report: 

No 

 
Summary: 

 

To: 

 review the Committee’s Work Programme for the remainder of the Municipal 

Year 2022/23; 

 note the progress of the Impact of Covid 19 on the Primary Curriculum Working 

Group; 

 seek the views of the Committee on the re-establishment of the Secondary 
School Performance and Attainment Working Group; 

 seek the views of the Committee on holding informal briefing sessions during 
2022/23, rather than establish a traditional working group; 

 to identify any items for pre-scrutiny by the Committee from the latest Key 
Decision Forward Plan; 

 receive an update on the Liverpool City Region Combined Authority Overview 
and Scrutiny Committee; 

 note the position of the Parent Governor Representatives that sit on the 

Committee. 
 

Recommendations: 

 

That: 
 
(1) the draft Work Programme for 2022/23, as set out at Appendix A to the report, 

be noted, along with any additional items to be included and agreed; 
 

(2) progress of the Impact of Covid 19 on the Primary Curriculum Working Group be 
noted; 
 

(3) consideration be given to the re-establishment of the Secondary School 
Performance and Attainment Working Group, and in the event that the Working 

Page 85

Agenda Item 10



Group is re-established, at least 3 Members of the Committee be appointed to 
serve on the Working Group; 

 
(4) consideration be given to holding informal briefing sessions for all Members of 

the Committee during 2022/23, rather than establish a traditional working group; 
 

(5) items for pre-scrutiny from the Key Decision Forward Plan which fall under the 

remit of the Committee, as set out in Appendix C to the report, be considered 
and any agreed items be included in the work programme referred to in (1) 

above; 
 

(6) the update on the Liverpool City Region Combined Authority Overview and 

Scrutiny Committee be noted; and 
 

(7) the position of the Parent Governor Representatives that sit on the Committee 
be noted and the Committee be invited to formally record thanks for the retiring 
Parent Governor Representative. 

 
 
Reasons for the Recommendation(s): 

 
To determine the Work Programme of items to be considered during the Municipal Year 

2022/23; identify scrutiny review topics which would demonstrate that the work of the 
Overview and Scrutiny “adds value” to the Council; and to comply with a decision of the 

Committee to update on the Liverpool City Region Combined Authority Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee. 
 

The pre-scrutiny process assists Cabinet Members to make effective decisions by 
examining issues before making formal decisions. 

 
Alternative Options Considered and Rejected: (including any Risk Implications) 

 

No alternative options have been considered as the Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
needs to approve its Work Programme and identify scrutiny review topics. 

 
What will it cost and how will it be financed? 

 

There are no direct financial implications arising from this report. Any financial 
implications arising from the consideration of a key decision or relating to a 

recommendation arising from a Working Group review will be reported to Members at the 
appropriate time. 
 
(A) Revenue Costs – see above 

 
(B) Capital Costs – see above 

 
Implications of the Proposals: 

 
Resource Implications (Financial, IT, Staffing and Assets): None 
 

Legal Implications: None 

 
Page 86

Agenda Item 10



Equality Implications: There are no equality implications. 
 

Climate Emergency Implications: 

 

The recommendations within this report will  

Have a positive impact  No 

Have a neutral impact Yes 

Have a negative impact No 

The Author has undertaken the Climate Emergency training for 

report authors 

Yes 

 
There are no direct climate emergency implications arising from this report. Any climate 
emergency implications arising from the consideration of reports referred to in the Work 

Programme will be contained in such reports when they are presented to Members at 
the appropriate time. 
 

 
Contribution to the Council’s Core Purpose:  

 

Protect the most vulnerable: None directly applicable to this report. Reference in the 
Work Programme to any other reports could impact on the Council’s Core Purposes, in 
which case they will be referred to in the report when submitted. 

 

Facilitate confident and resilient communities: As Above  

Commission, broker and provide core services: As Above  

Place – leadership and influencer: As Above 

Drivers of change and reform: As Above 

Facilitate sustainable economic prosperity: As Above 

Greater income for social investment: As Above 

Cleaner Greener: As Above 

 
What consultations have taken place on the proposals and when? 

 
(A) Internal Consultations 

 
The Work Programme Report is not subject to FD/LD consultation.  Any specific financial 

and legal implications associated with any subsequent reports arising from the Work 
Programme report will be included in those reports as appropriate. 
 
(B) External Consultations  

 

Not applicable 
 
Implementation Date for the Decision 

 
Immediately following the Committee meeting. 

 
Contact Officer: Debbie Campbell 

Telephone Number: 0151 934 2254 

Email Address: debbie.campbell@sefton.gov.uk  

 

Page 87

Agenda Item 10

mailto:debbie.campbell@sefton.gov.uk


Appendices: 

 

The following appendices are attached to this report: 
 

 Appendix A – Overview and Scrutiny Work Programme for 2022/23; 

 Appendix B – Criteria Checklist for Selecting Topics for Review; 

 Appendix C - Latest Key Decision Forward Plan items relating to this Overview 
and Scrutiny Committee. 

 
Background Papers: 

 

There are no background papers available for inspection. 
 
 

 
 
Introduction/Background 

 
 
1. WORK PROGRAMME 2022/23 

 

1.1 The proposed Work Programme of items to be submitted to the Committee for 
consideration during the Municipal Year 2022/23 is set out at Appendix A to the 

report. The programme has been produced in liaison with the appropriate Heads 

of Service, whose roles fall under the remit of the Committee. 
 

1.2 Members are requested to consider whether there are any other items that they 
wish the Committee to consider, that fall within the terms of reference of the 
Committee. The Work Programme will be submitted to each meeting of the 

Committee during 2022/23 and updated, as appropriate. 
 

1.3 At the time of drafting this report, there is a possibility that the frequency of the 
Committee’s meetings could be increased during 2022/23 and any further 
information will be reported at the meeting. 

 
1.4 The Committee is requested to comment on the Work Programme for 

2022/23, as appropriate, and note that additional items may be added to the 
Programme at future meetings of the Committee during this Municipal Year. 

 

 
2. SCRUTINY REVIEW TOPIC 2021/22 – IMPACT OF COVID 19 ON THE 

PRIMARY CURRICULUM WORKING GROUP 

 
2.1 At the meeting of the Committee held on 28 September 2021, the Committee 

agreed that: 
 

 a working group on the impact of Covid 19 on the primary curriculum be 
established, to include the consideration of the impact of lockdown and home 
schooling, comprised of the following Members of the Committee: 

 

 Councillor Spencer 

Page 88

Agenda Item 10



 Councillor Yvonne Sayers 

 Mrs. S. Cain, Independent Advisory Member 

 Ms. M. McDermott, Parent Governor Representative 
 

(Minute No. 22 (4) refers). 
 

2.2 A number of meetings of the Working Group have taken place and Members have 
suggested recommendations arising from the review. 

 

2.3 At the time of drafting this report, the Final Report of the Working Group is due to 
be submitted to the meeting of the Council to be held on 29 September 2022 for 

approval. 
 
2.4 The Committee is requested to note the progress of the Impact of Covid 19 

on the Primary Curriculum Working Group. 

 

 
3. POSSIBLE SCRUTINY REVIEW TOPIC 2022/23 - SECONDARY SCHOOL 

PERFORMANCE AND ATTAINMENT WORKING GROUP 

 
3.1 It is usual practise for the Committee to appoint a Working Group(s) to undertake 

a scrutiny review of services during the Municipal Year. 
 
3.2 At its last meeting held on 5 July 2022, the Committee agreed to give further 

consideration to the re-establishment of the Secondary School Performance and 
Attainment Working Group at the next meeting. 

 
3.3 For the information of Members a criteria checklist for selecting and rejecting 

potential topics to review is attached at Appendix B, to assist the Committee in 

selecting topics and appointing Working Group(s) for the Municipal Year. 
 

3.4 In the event that the Working Group is re-established, at least 3 Members of the 
Committee will be required to be appointed to serve on the Working Group; 

 
3.5 The views of the Committee’s views are sought on the establishment of a 

Working Group to review the topic of Secondary School Performance and 

Attainment Working Group. 

 
 
4. INFORMAL BRIEFING SESSIONS 2022/23 

 

4.1 Rather than establish a traditional working group, as set out in paragraph 3 above, 
all Members of the Committee could be invited to participate in informal briefings 
on the work of Children’s Services and Safeguarding, where the information could 

be deemed useful. 
 

4.2 A number of possible topics have been suggested for informal briefings, including 
the following: 

 

 Leeds Family Values and the Sunderland model; and 

 The MacAlister Review. 

Page 89

Agenda Item 10



 
4.3 The Council’s other three Overview and Scrutiny Committees have expressed an 

interest in holding informal briefings/workshop sessions/ task and finish groups, 
rather than establishing traditional working groups. 

 
4.4 The views of the Committee’s views are sought on holding informal briefing 

sessions for all Members of the Committee during 2022/23, rather than 

establishing a traditional working group. 

 

 
5. PRE-SCRUTINY OF ITEMS IN THE KEY DECISION FORWARD PLAN 

 

5.1 Members may request to pre-scrutinise items from the Key Decision Forward Plan 
which fall under the remit (terms of reference) of this Committee. The Forward 

Plan, which is updated each month, sets out the list of items to be submitted to the 
Cabinet for consideration during the next four-month period. 

 

5.2 The pre-scrutiny process assists the Cabinet Members to make effective 
decisions by examining issues beforehand and making recommendations prior to 

a determination being made. 
 
5.3 The Overview and Scrutiny Management Board has requested that only those key 

decisions that fall under the remit of each Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
should be included on the agenda for consideration. 

 
5.4 The latest Forward Plan, published on 31 August 2022 and covering the period 1 

October 2022 - 31 January 2023, is attached at Appendix C for this purpose. For 

ease of identification, items listed on the Forward Plan for the first time appear as 
shaded. 

 
5.5 Should Members require further information in relation to any item on the Key 

Decision Forward Plan, would they please contact the relevant Officer named 

against the item in the Plan, prior to the meeting. 
5.6 The Committee is invited to consider items for pre-scrutiny from the Key 

Decision Forward Plan as set out in Appendix C to the report, which fall 
under the remit of the Committee and any agreed items be included in the 
Work Programme referred to in (1) above. 

 
 
6. LIVERPOOL CITY REGION COMBINED AUTHORITY OVERVIEW AND 

SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

 

6.1 During the October/November 2019 cycle of meetings, the Overview and Scrutiny 
Management Board and the four Overview and Scrutiny Committees considered a 

report on the guidance produced by the Ministry of Housing, Communities and 
Local Government relating to Overview and Scrutiny in Local and Combined 
Authorities following on from the Communities and Local Government Select 

Committee’s inquiry into Overview and Scrutiny. This Committee considered the 
matter at its meeting held on 15 October 2019 (Minute No. 32 refers). 

 
6.2 The Overview and Scrutiny Management Board and the four Overview and 

Scrutiny Committees all agreed the recommendations contained in the report, one 

Page 90

Agenda Item 10



of which being that updates on Liverpool City Region Combined Authority 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee (LCRCAO&S) be included in the Work 

Programme report considered at each Overview and Scrutiny Committee meeting. 
 

6.3 In accordance with the above decision, information on the LCRCAO&S is set out 
below. 

 
6.4 Role 

 

The Overview and Scrutiny Committee was established by the Combined 
Authority in May 2017 in accordance with the Combined Authorities Order 2017. 

 

The role of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee is to: 
 

 Scrutinise the decision and actions taken by the Combined Authority or the 
Metro Mayor; 

 Provide a “critical friend” to policy and strategy development; 

 Undertake scrutiny reviews into areas of strategic importance for the people of 
the Liverpool City Region; and 

 Monitor the delivery of the Combined Authority’s strategic plan. 
 
6.5 Membership 

 
The Committee is made up of 3 elected Members from each of the constituent 

Local Authorities of the LCR Combined Authority, along with one elected Member 
from both the Liverpool City Region Liberal Democrat Group and the Liverpool 

City Region Conservative Group. 
 

 Sefton’s appointed Members are Councillors Howard (Scrutiny Link), Hansen and 

Waterfield. 
 

Representatives of the Liberal Democrat Group and Conservative Group on the 
Committee will be reported to Members at the next meeting. 

 
6.6 Chair and Vice-Chair 

 

The Chair of the LCRCAO&S cannot be a Member of the majority group. The 
Chair will be appointed at the first meeting of the Committee on 13 July 2022.  

 
6.7 Quoracy Issues 

 

A high number of meetings of the LCRCAO&S have been inquorate in the past. 
 

The quorum for meetings of the LCRCAO&S is 14, two-thirds of the total number 

of members, 20. This high threshold is not set by the Combined Authority but is 
set out in legislation.  

 
The Combined Authority’s Monitoring Officer will be looking to work with the 
Monitoring Officers from the other Combined Authorities to identify what problems 

they are experiencing with Scrutiny and how/if they had overcome them. 
Representations to Government would also be considered once all options locally 

Page 91

Agenda Item 10



to resolve the quorum issue had been exhausted. The CA Monitoring Officer 
would then be able to provide evidence to Government that the quorum level was 

obstructing the work of scrutiny within the CA.  
 
6.8 Meetings 

 
Information on all meetings and membership of the LCRCAO&S can be obtained 

using the following link: 
 

https://moderngov.merseytravel.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CId=365&Year=0 
 
6.9 Latest Meeting – 7 September 2022 

 
The latest meeting of the LCRCAO&S was held on 7 September 2022. 

 
Matters considered at the meeting related to: 

 

 Portfolio Holder Update - Business Support 

 Race Equality Programme 

 Recommendations of the Improving Disability Employment Opportunities in 
the Liverpool City Region Task and Finish Group 

 Work Programme Update 
 

The next meeting of the LCRCAO&S will be held on 9 November 2022. Matters 

discussed at the meeting will be reported to Members at the next meeting of the 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee. 

 
Details of all meetings can be obtained using the link referred to above 

 

6.10 The Committee is requested to note the update on the Liverpool City Region 
Combined Authority Overview and Scrutiny Committee. 

 
 
7. PARENT GOVERNOR REPRESENTATIVES 

 
7.1 The Committee has two Parent Governor Representatives that sit on the 

Committee. 
 
7.2 Since the previous meeting of the Committee, one of the Parent Governor 

Representatives has tendered her resignation. 
 

7.3 The other Parent Governor Representative is due to attend her final meeting on 7 
November 2022, before her term of office expires. 

 

7.4 The Governor Services Team within the Council has been advised of the position 
and will be seeking nominations for new Parent Governor Representatives to sit 

on the Committee in due course. 
 
7.5 The Committee is requested to note the position of the Parent Governor 

Representatives that sit on the Committee and to formally record thanks for 
the retiring Parent Governor Representative. 

Page 92

Agenda Item 10

https://moderngov.merseytravel.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CId=365&Year=0


 

Page 93

Agenda Item 10



This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX A 

15/09/22 

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE (CHILDREN’S SERVICES AND SAFEGUARDING) 

 
DRAFT WORK PROGRAMME 2022/23 

 

Date of Meeting /  
Item 

Tues 
05/07/22 

Bootle 

Tues 
27/09/22 

Southport 

Mon 
07/11/22 
Bootle 

Tues 
20/12/22 

Southport 

Tues 
31/01/23 
Bootle 

Mon 
06/03/23 

Southport 

Regular Reports       

Cabinet Member Update Reports 
(Amy Riley/Debbie Campbell) 

 

X X X X X X 

Work Programme Update 
(Debbie Campbell) 

 

X X X X X X 

Ofsted Inspection Reports (Termly Basis) 
(Tricia Davies) 

 

X X    X 

Service Operational Reports:        

Final Report of the Impact of Covid 19 on the 

Primary Curriculum Working Group 
(Debbie Campbell) 

 

X      

Update on Ofsted Report and Improvement Plan 
(Martin Birch) 

 

X  X X X X 

Children’s Social Care Improvement Journey 
(Laura Knights) 
(See note below) 

 

      

Children's Services Improvement Programme 
(Jan McMahon) 

(The above item to be incorporated) 
 

 X     

P
age 95

A
genda Item

 10



APPENDIX A 

15/09/22 

 

Date of Meeting /  
Item 

Tues 
05/07/22 

Bootle 

Tues 
27/09/22 

Southport 

Mon 
07/11/22 
Bootle 

Tues 
20/12/22 

Southport 

Tues 
31/01/23 
Bootle 

Mon 
06/03/23 

Southport 

Early Help Services 
(Jan McMahon) 

 

 X     

Education Excellence Strategy for Sefton 2022-
2027 
(Nicola Robson/Tricia Davies) 

 

 X     

Domestic Abuse 
(Janette Maxwell/Simon Burnett/Steven Martlew) 

 

 X     

SEND Annual Update 
(Tricia Davies) 

 

  X    

Integrated Care System Update and Start Well 
Overview 
(Eleanor Moulton) 

 

  X    

Corporate Parenting Board - Annual Update – Invite 
Cr. Doyle 
(Laura Knights) 

 

  X    

Exam/Test Data 
(Tricia Davies) 

 

    X  

Sefton Local Safeguarding Children Board - Annual 
Update 
(Joe Banham/Deb Hughes) 

 

    X  

Fostering Service - Annual Update 
(Laura Knights) 

    X  

P
age 96

A
genda Item

 10



APPENDIX A 

15/09/22 

 
Date of Meeting /  

Item 

Tues 
05/07/22 

Bootle 

Tues 
27/09/22 

Southport 

Mon 
07/11/22 
Bootle 

Tues 
20/12/22 

Southport 

Tues 
31/01/23 
Bootle 

Mon 
06/03/23 

Southport 

Adoption Service - Annual Update 
(Laura Knights) 

 

    X  

NHS Updates       
Sefton Community Child and Adolescent Mental 
Health Services (CAMHS) - Update 
(CE of CCGs/Alder Hey Rep) 

 

     X 

 

P
age 97

A
genda Item

 10



T
his page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX B 
 

 
 

 
CRITERIA CHECKLIST FOR SELECTING TOPICS FOR REVIEW 

 

Criteria for Selecting Items 
 Issue identified by members as key issue for public (through member 

surgeries, other contact with constituents or volume of complaints) 

 Poor performing service (evidence from performance 
indicators/benchmarking) 

 Service ranked as important by the community (e.g. through market 
surveys/citizens panels) 

 High level of user/general public dissatisfaction with service (e.g. through 
market surveys/citizens panels/complaints) 

 Public interest issue covered in local media 

 High level of budgetary commitment to the service/policy area (as 
percentage of total expenditure) 

 Pattern of budgetary overspends 

 Council corporate priority area 

 Central government priority area 

 Issues raised by External Audit Management Letter/External audit reports 

 New government guidance or legislation 

 Reports or new evidence provided by external organisations on key issue 

 Others 

 
 
 

CRITERIA FOR REJECTION 

 

Potential Criteria for Rejecting Items 
 Issue being examined by the Cabinet 

 Issue being examined by an Officer Group : changes imminent  

 Issue being examined by another internal body 

 Issue will be addressed as part of a Service Review within the next year  

 New legislation or guidance expected within the next year 

 Other reasons specific to the particular issues. 

 
 
 

 
  

Page 99

Agenda Item 10



APPENDIX B 
 

SCRUTINY CHECKLIST 
DO'S AND DON'TS 

 

DO 
 Remember that Scrutiny 

 Is about learning and being a "critical friend"; it should be a positive 

process 

 Is not opposition 

 Remember that Scrutiny should result in improved value, enhanced 

performance or greater public satisfaction 

 Take an overview and keep an eye on the wider picture 

 Check performance against local standards and targets and national 
standards, and compare results with other authorities  

 Benchmark performance against local and national performance 
indicators, using the results to ask more informed questions  

 Use Working Groups to get underneath performance information 

 Take account of local needs, priorities and policies 

 Be persistent and inquisitive 

 Ask effective questions - be constructive not judgmental 

 Be open-minded and self aware - encourage openness and self criticism in 
services 

 Listen to users and the public, seek the voices that are often not heard, 

seek the views of others - and balance all of these 

 Praise good practice and best value - and seek to spread this throughout 
the authority 

 Provide feedback to those who have been involved in the review and to 

stakeholders 

 Anticipate difficulties in Members challenging colleagues from their own 
party  

 Take time to review your own performance 

 

 DON'T 
 Witch-hunt or use performance review as punishment 

 Be party political/partisan 

 Blame valid risk taking or stifle initiative or creativity 

 Treat scrutiny as an add-on 

 Get bogged down in detail 

 Be frightened of asking basic questions 

 Undertake too many issues in insufficient depth 

 Start without a clear brief and remit 

 Underestimate the task 

 Lose track of the main purpose of scrutiny 

 Lack sensitivity to other stakeholders 

 Succumb to organisational inertia 

 Duck facing failure - learn from it and support change and development 

 Be driven by data or be paralysed by analysis - keep strategic overview, 
and expect officers to provide high level information and analysis to help. 

Page 100

Agenda Item 10



APPENDIX B 
 

 
 

KEY QUESTIONS 
 

Overview and Scrutiny Committees should keep in mind some of the 

fundamental questions:- 
 

Are we doing what users/non users/local residents want?  

Are users' needs central to the service? 

Why are we doing this? 

What are we trying to achieve? 

How well are we doing? 

How do we compare with others? 

Are we delivering value for money? 

How do we know? 

What can we improve? 

 
 
INVESTIGATIONS:- 

 

To what extent are service users' expectations and needs being met? 

To what extent is the service achieving what the policy intended? 

To what extent is the service meeting any statutory obligations or national 
standards and targets? 

Are there any unexpected results/side effects of the policy? 

Is the performance improving, steady or deteriorating? 

Is the service able to be honest and open about its current performance and 
the reasons behind it? 

Are areas of achievement and weakness fairly and accurately identified? 

How has performance been assessed?  What is the evidence? 

How does performance compare with that of others?  Are there learning 

points from others' experiences? 

Is the service capable of meeting planned targets/standards?  What change to 
capability is needed. 

Are local performance indicators relevant, helpful, meaningful to Members, 

staff and service users? 

 

Page 101

Agenda Item 10



This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX C 

1 
 

 

SEFTON METROPOLITAN BOROUGH COUNCIL  

FORWARD PLAN 
 

FOR THE FOUR MONTH PERIOD 1 OCTOBER 2022 - 31 JANUARY 2023 

 

This Forward Plan sets out the details of the key decisions which the Cabinet, individual Cabinet 
Members or Officers expect to take during the next four month period.  The Plan is rolled forward 
every month and is available to the public at least 28 days before the beginning of each month. 

 
A Key Decision is defined in the Council's Constitution as: 

 
1. any Executive decision that is not in the Annual Revenue Budget and Capital Programme 

approved by the Council and which requires a gross budget expenditure, saving or virement 

of more than £100,000 or more than 2% of a Departmental budget, whichever is the 
greater; 

 
2. any Executive decision where the outcome will have a significant impact on a significant 

number of people living or working in two or more Wards 

 
Anyone wishing to make representations about any of the matters listed below may do so by 

contacting the relevant officer listed against each Key Decision, within the time period indicated. 
 
Under the Access to Information Procedure Rules set out in the Council's Constitution, a Key 

Decision may not be taken, unless: 
 

 it is published in the Forward Plan; 

 5 clear days have lapsed since the publication of the Forward Plan; and 

 if the decision is to be taken at a meeting of the Cabinet, 5 clear days notice of the meeting 
has been given. 

 

The law and the Council's Constitution provide for urgent key decisions to be made, even though 
they have not been included in the Forward Plan in accordance with Rule 26 (General Exception) 

and Rule 28 (Special Urgency) of the Access to Information Procedure Rules. 
 
Copies of the following documents may be inspected at the Town Hall, Oriel Road, Bootle L20 

7AE or accessed from the Council's website: www.sefton.gov.uk  
 

 Council Constitution 

 Forward Plan 

 Reports on the Key Decisions to be taken 

 Other documents relating to the proposed decision may be submitted to the decision making 
meeting and these too will be made available by the contact officer named in the Plan 

 The minutes for each Key Decision, which will normally be published within 5 working days 
after having been made 

 
Some reports to be considered by the Cabinet/Council may contain exempt information and will 

not be made available to the public. The specific reasons (Paragraph No(s)) why such reports are 
exempt are detailed in the Plan and the Paragraph No(s) and descriptions are set out below:- 

Page 103

Agenda Item 10

http://www.sefton.gov.uk/


APPENDIX C 

2 
 

 
1. Information relating to any individual 

2. Information which is likely to reveal the identity of an individual 
3. Information relating to the financial or business affairs of any particular person (including the 

  authority holding that information) 
4. Information relating to any consultations or negotiations, or contemplated consultations or        
negotiations in connection with any labour relations matter  arising between the authority or a 

Minister of the Crown and employees of, or office holders under, the Authority 
5. Information in respect of which a claim to legal professional privilege could be maintained in 

legal proceedings 
6. Information which reveals that the authority proposes a) to give under any enactment a notice 
under or by virtue of which requirements are imposed   on a person; or b) to make an order or 

direction under any enactment 
7. Information relating to any action taken or to be taken in connection with the prevention, 

investigation or prosecution of crime 
8. Information falling within paragraph 3 above is not exempt information by virtue of that 
paragraph if it is required to be registered under— 

 (a) the Companies Act 1985; 
 (b) the Friendly Societies Act 1974; 

 (c) the Friendly Societies Act 1992; 
 (d) the Industrial and Provident Societies Acts 1965 to 1978; 
 (e) the Building Societies Act 1986; or 

 (f) the Charities Act 1993. 
9.Information is not exempt information if it relates to proposed development for which the local 

planning authority may grant itself planning permission pursuant to regulation 3 of the Town and 
Country Planning General Regulations 1992 
10. Information which— 

 (a) falls within any of paragraphs 1 to 7 above; and 
 (b) is not prevented from being exempt by virtue of paragraph 8 or 9 above,is exempt 

information if and so long, as in all the circumstances  of the case, the public interest in 
maintaining the exemption outweighs the public interest in disclosing the information. 
 

Members of the public are welcome to attend meetings of the Cabinet and Council which are held 
at the Town Hall, Oriel Road, Bootle or the Town Hall, Lord Street, Southport.  The dates and 

times of the meetings are published on www.sefton.gov.uk or you may contact the Democratic 
Services Section on telephone number 0151 934 2068. 
 

NOTE:   
For ease of identification, items listed within the document for the first time will appear shaded. 

 
 
 

 
 
Dwayne Johnson 
Chief Executive 

 
 

Page 104

Agenda Item 10

http://www.sefton.gov.uk/


APPENDIX C 

3 
 

 

FORWARD PLAN INDEX OF ITEMS 
 

Item Heading Officer Contact 

  

Sefton's Childhood Poverty Strategy Helen O'Reilly helen.oreilly@sefton.gov.uk, Helen 
Armitage helen.armitage@sefton.gov.uk, Anna 
Nygaard anna.nygaard@sefton.gov.uk Tel: 0151 

934 3743 

Education Excellence Strategy for Sefton 
2021-2025 

Nicola Robson nicola.robson@sefton.gov.uk 

 
 

Page 105

Agenda Item 10



APPENDIX C 

4 
 

 

SEFTON METROPOLITAN BOROUGH COUNCIL 

FORWARD PLAN 

 

Details of Decision to be taken Sefton's Childhood Poverty Strategy   

The strategy is designed to tackle poverty and deprivation 
and is particularly important in the context of current 
financial pressures facing households. It will form part of our 

bold approach to improve social, environmental and 
economic sustainability, which will help protect communities 

for future generations. 

Decision Maker Cabinet 

Decision Expected  6 Oct 2022  

 

Key Decision Criteria Financial No Community 

Impact 

Yes 

Exempt Report Open 

Wards Affected All Wards 

Scrutiny Committee Area  Children's Services and Safeguarding 

Persons/Organisations to be 

Consulted  

Council officers, Every Child Matters Forum (ECM) (multi-

agency partnership, including VCF); externally 
commissioned research funded by the Health Equity Group 
(Marmot). 

Method(s) of Consultation  Stakeholder engagement via Teams and face to face 
meetings, local research with local people. Externally 

commissioned research based in our most deprived 
communities. 

List of Background Documents 

to be Considered by Decision-
maker 

Sefton's Childhood Poverty Strategy 

Contact Officer(s) details 
 

Helen O'Reilly helen.oreilly@sefton.gov.uk, Helen Armitage 
helen.armitage@sefton.gov.uk, Anna Nygaard 
anna.nygaard@sefton.gov.uk Tel: 0151 934 3743 

 

 

 
 

Page 106

Agenda Item 10



APPENDIX C 

5 
 

 

SEFTON METROPOLITAN BOROUGH COUNCIL 

FORWARD PLAN 

 

Details of Decision to be taken Education Excellence Strategy for Sefton 2021-2025   

The strategy sets out how all children and young people in 
Sefton will receive an education, which enables them to 
reach their individual potential, have a clear pathway to 

further education, employment and engage positively with 
others in their community. The strategy demonstrates the 

Council’s role in system leadership, facilitating school 
leaders to lead school improvement and school to school 
support and sets out the clear priorities which will address 

the key themes and measure the progress towards the key 
actions. 

Decision Maker Cabinet 

Decision Expected  6 Oct 2022  
Decision due date for Cabinet changed from 28/07/2022 to 

06/10/2022.  Reason: in order to extend consultation and 
obtain further information 

 

Key Decision Criteria Financial No Community 
Impact 

Yes 

Exempt Report Open 

Wards Affected All Wards 

Scrutiny Committee Area  Children's Services and Safeguarding 

Persons/Organisations to be 
Consulted  

Parents and carers; children and young people; school 
governing bodies; and key stake holder groups. 

Method(s) of Consultation  online survey; face to face small group meetings; easy read 
surveys; creative consultation activities; meetings; 

presentations; emails 

List of Background Documents 
to be Considered by Decision-

maker 

Education Excellence Strategy for Sefton 2021-2025 

Contact Officer(s) details 

 

Nicola Robson nicola.robson@sefton.gov.uk 

 

Page 107

Agenda Item 10



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the Previous Meeting
	4 Domestic Abuse Update
	5 Children's Services Improvement Programme
	Enc. 1 for Children's Services Improvement Programme

	7 Education Excellence Strategy for Sefton 2022-2027
	Enc. 1 for Education Excellence Strategy for Sefton 2021-2027

	8 Ofsted Inspection Reports
	9 Cabinet Member Reports
	Appendix A CSC Children's Services
	Appendix B Education

	10 Work Programme Key Decision Forward Plan
	Appendix A Work Programme
	Appendix B Selection Criteria
	Appendix C KDFP Oct - Jan


